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GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibilities for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hanvey
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquires, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material aspects and not misleading
or deceptive and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Hanvey Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’'s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$139.34 million, decreased
by approximately 29.64% when compared with that for the
corresponding period of 2019. The decrease was primarily due to,
among other things, the imposition of quarantine, lockdown and
travel restrictions as a result of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
pandemic (COVID-19) in January 2020. The pandemic resulted
in weak demand and decrease sale of our products in our major
markets. Nevertheless, with the availability of vaccines in January
2021, the number of infections in Asian countries has fallen. Hence,
the demand for our products has gradually increased.

The Hong Kong Trade Development Council (“"HKTDC") used to
conduct a survey every quarter, which involves interviewing 500
local exporters from six major industries that include machinery,
electronics, jewellery, watches and clocks, toys and clothing to gauge
their business confidence on near-term export prospects. According
to the HKTDC's research entitled: “"HKTDC Export Index 4Q20:
Exporter Sentiment Improves as Initial Covid-19 Shockwave Recedes”
dated 9 December 2020, the HKTDC Export Index (the “Index”)
rose from 18.8 in the fourth quarter of 2019 (“4Q19") to 36.2 in
the fourth quarter of 2020 (“4Q20"). This suggests that exporters
are less pessimistic with regard to their likely export performance in
the coming months. However the overall Index which stays below
the watershed mark of 50, indicates that considerable uncertainties
remain with regard to the short term export outlook.

The HKTDC reported that, overall, a broad improvement in the
economy was evident across all the major industry sectors, with
timepieces rose from 15.5 in 4Q19 to 33.5 in 4Q20.

In terms of the major markets, Mainland China (48.4% of the
interviewees) and ASEAN (47.2% of the interviewees) continued to
command the most positive short-term market outlook.

With confidence ebbing back after the initial trauma of the Covid 19
outbreak, the HKTDC Export Index is continuing its gradual climb.
This saw a rise from 18.8 in 4Q19 to 36.2 in 4Q20 and marked
the third consecutive quarter of improvement. Although this does
suggest that peak exporter pessimism has passed, it is still likely that
Hong Kong exporters will face considerable challenges over the near
term given that the overall Index remained in contractionary territory.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRBE

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) infection is casting
an adverse impact to the world with social and economic activities
mostly halted in the seriously affected countries and territories.

Although most international trade fairs have been cancelled or
postponed due to the COVID-19 pandemic, but we can continue
reaching out to overseas buyers via online fairs and platforms.

We would emphasis that the growth will be gradual and will depend
to a large extent on how the global economy performs and whether
the COVID-19 situation under control. Given the improved growth
outlook for key external economies, as well as a further easing of the
global and domestic public health measures with the availability of
vaccines, the watch market is projected to return to growth in 2021.

We intend to continue to focus on the core business, take efforts
in strengthening our product design and development capability in
order to maximise the long term returns of the shareholders of the
Company.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
Board for its excellent leadership, to the Company’s shareholders
for their strong support and guidance, and to the community for
their enthusiastic help, and last but not least, to our staff for their
dedicated efforts and brilliant ideas.

CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DA

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the design and development,
manufacturing and distribution of watch products on original design
manufacturing (“ODM") basis for watch manufacturers, brand
owners and watch importers across the globe.

The Group derives revenue mainly from the sale of: (i) finished
watches, (i) semi-knocked-down kit, and (iii) watch parts.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's revenue
amounted to approximately HK$139.34 million, decreased
by approximately 29.64% when compared with that for the
corresponding period of 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$139.34 million, decreased
by approximately 29.64% when compared with that for the
corresponding period of 2019. The decrease was primarily due to,
among other things, the imposition of quarantine, lockdown and
travel restrictions as a result of the outbreak of the COVID-19 in
January 2020. The pandemic resulted in weak demand and decrease
in sale of our products in our major markets. Nevertheless, with the
availability of vaccines in January 2021, the number of infections in
Asian countries has fallen. Hence, the demand for our products has
gradually increased.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DM

The Hong Kong Trade Development Council (“HKTDC") used to
conduct a survey every quarter, which involves interviewing 500
local exporters from six major industries that include machinery,
electronics, jewellery, watches and clocks, toys and clothing to gauge
their business confidence on near-term export prospects. According
to the HKTDC's research entitled: “HKTDC Export Index 4Q20:
Exporter Sentiment Improves as Initial Covid-19 Shockwave Recedes”
dated 9 December 2020, the HKTDC Export Index (the “Index”) rose
from 18.8 in 4Q19 to 36.2 in 4Q20. This suggests that exporters
are less pessimistic to their likely export performance in the coming
months. However the overall Index which stays below the watershed
mark of 50, indicates that considerable uncertainties remain with
regard to the short term export outlook.

The HKTDC reported that, overall, a broad improvement in the
economy was evident across all the major industry sectors, with
timepieces rose from 15.5 in 4Q19 to 33.5 in 4Q20.

In terms of the major markets, Mainland China (48.4% of the
interviewees) and ASEAN (47.2% of the interviewees) continued to
command the most positive short-term market outlook.

With confidence ebbing back after the initial trauma of the Covid
19 outbreak, the Index is continuing its gradual climb. This saw
a rise from 18.8 in 4Q19 to 36.2 in 4Q20 and marked the third
consecutive quarter of improvement. Although this does suggest that
peak exporter pessimism has passed, it is still likely that Hong Kong
exporters will face considerable challenges over the near term given
that the overall Index remained in contractionary territory.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group decreased by approximately HK$58.71
million or approximately 29.64% from approximately HK$198.05
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$139.34 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
decrease was primarily due to, among other things, the imposition
of quarantine, lockdown and travel restrictions as a result of the
outbreak of the COVID-19 in January 2020. The pandemic resulted
in weak demand and decrease in sale of our products in our major
markets. Nevertheless, with the availability of vaccines in January
2021, the number of infections in Asian countries has fallen. Hence,
the demand for our products has gradually increased.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales decreased by approximately HK$41.55 million or
28.12% from approximately HK$147.74 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately HK$106.19 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease was mainly due to the
global lockdown caused by the outbreak of the COVID-19. Despite
our management tried very hard to minimise its negative impact to
our business, the cost of sales dropped 28.12% which is in line with
our revenue which has dropped 29.64%.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the decrease in revenue, our gross profit decreased
by approximately HK$17.17 million or approximately 34.13% from
approximately HK$50.31 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately HK$33.14 million for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
HK$0.99 million or approximately 18.54% from approximately
HK$5.34 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$4.35 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in packing
expenses and decrease in exhibition expenses as the Baselworld’s
2020 show has been cancelled due to the outbreak of the
COVID-19..
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DM

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$6.12
million or approximately 11.34% from approximately HK$53.96
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$47.84 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
decrease was primarily due to (i) the decrease in staff cost as a result
of, among others, of a reduction in salaries and distribution of bonus
to staff; (ii) the decrease in professional expenses for compliance;
(iii) the decrease in travelling expenses; and (iv) the decrease in the
Group’s charitable donation.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased by approximately HK$1.01 million or
approximately 25.31% from approximately HK$3.99 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately HK$5.00 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The increase was mainly due
to the Group obtaining more bank facilities to maintain its normal
operation during business down turn cycle.

Loss before taxation

We recorded an increase in a loss before taxation of approximately
HK$26.19 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 as
compared to the loss before taxation of approximately HK$13.87
million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Taxation

Our income tax expenses decreased by approximately HK$0.66
million or approximately 97.06% from approximately HK$0.68
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to HK$0.02 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in taxable profit of a Hong Kong subsidiary.

Loss for the year

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded a loss for the year of
approximately HK$26.21 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 as compared to approximately HK$14.55 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmE DM

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

Following its weakest performance since the global financial crisis,
the world economy is poised for a modest rebound in 2021.
Market sentiment has been boosted by tentative signs: intermittent
favourable news on the US-PRC trade negotiations, central banks’
shifting toward accommodative monetary policy, and diminished
fears of a no-deal Brexit.

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) infection is casting
an adverse impact to the world with social and economic activities
mostly halted in the seriously affected countries and territories.
Although most international trade fairs have been cancelled or
postponed due to the COVID-19 pandemic, we can continue
reaching out to overseas buyers via online fairs and platforms.

With the emphasis that the growth will be gradual and will depend
to a large extent on how the global economy performs and whether
the COVID-19 situation is under control. Given the improved growth
outlook for key external economies, as well as a further easing of
global and domestic public health measures with the availability of
vaccines, the watch market is expected to return to growth in 2021.

We intend to continue to focus on the core business, take efforts
in strengthening our product design and development capability in
order to maximise the long term returns of the shareholders of the
Company.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the Company’s capital structure for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The capital structure of the Group
comprises of issued share capital and reserves. The Directors review
the Group’s capital structure regularly.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$17.85 million (2019: HK$22.19 million). The
current ratios (current asset divided by current liabilities) of the Group
were 1.07 times and 1.09 times as at 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019 respectively.

The Directors are of the view that at the date of this annual report,
the Group’s financial resources are sufficient to support its business
and operations.

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group calculated

by total borrowings as a percentage of total equity was approximately
160%. (2019: 89%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRR DN

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no capital commitments.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the following assets were pledged to bank
to secure the Group’s banking facilities:

AE
HZE2020F 128318 KAEBEW B
B IEIE o

BEKH
2020812 A31H » THEERKIFFIRT
EAREBRITRIBMER

HK$'000

FAET

Property, plant and equipment W - BB L& 56,563
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EAFEFTABZNESREE 17,780
Investment properties REYE 10,748
Pledged bank deposits EEARITIENR 46,619
131,710

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's purchases are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The
sales of the Group are predominantly in US Dollars, Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollars. The Group will review and monitor from time to
time the risk relating to foreign exchanges.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group neither took
part in any derivatives activities nor entered into any hedging activities
in respect of foreign exchange risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).
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EEEFNWR DN

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, we had a total of 112 employees (2019:
166). The decrease was mainly due to the Group wants to have
better management of our design, quality control and research &
development. The management has outsourced our manufacturing
part to a sub-contractor. Therefore, the number of employees has
significantly decreased. The Company determines employee salaries
based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority.
Our Group has established an annual review system to assess
the performance of our employees, which forms the basis of our
decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses and promotions.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board with
the recommendation from the Remuneration Committee of the
Company, having considered factors such as the Group’s financial
performance, the achievement of special targets and the individual
performance of the Directors, etc.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group had no
significant events occurred.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN
USE OF PROCEEDS FriezhiE A

During the period from the listing of the shares of the Company on BANERMAR2018F7 128 ([ £L®A
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) on 12 July 2018 (the ) EE R ATGEM B ([ £ ) 2020
“Listing Date”) to 31 December 2020, the Group has applied the F12 4318 - AEBFERAMERIBEFEN

net proceeds as follows: T
Amount Amount
utilised unutilised
up to as at
31 December 31 December
Allocation 2020 2020
HZ2020% BZ2020%F
12A31H 12A31H
SHE BEANGE RBANSE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FTET
Acquisition of new production facilities BENMEELRNE 21,629 21,629 -
Expansion of e-commerce customer base BAETHREPHE 2,739 2,739 -
Strengthening of design capabilities JIlEE S 2,200 2,200 -
Repayment of bank loan BEFITER 7,422 7,422 -
Working capital EEER 480 480 -
Total @ar 34,470 34,470 -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

COMPARISON BETWEEN BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

EREGRHEREBER LR

AND ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

The following is a comparison between the Group’s business plans as
set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 June 2018 (the
"Prospectus”) and the Group’s actual business progress for the year

ended 31 December 2020:

Business plan for the Year
as set out in the Prospectus

ERERFEMFEXKTE

ARElHHA2018F 6 A28 A2 HlRER
([BRER] IS AEEEREEEE
2000F 12 MBI FEZAEBERE
HERZLLBRWMT

Actual business progress as at 31 December 2020

R2020F 12 31 B2 EREKER

Repayment of bank loan
EERITER

Expansion of e-commerce
customer base

BAEFHBEEPE

Strengthening of design
capabilities

ISR R ETRE N

Acquisition of new production
facilities

BEMNEERE

Annual Report 2020 ¥

The Group has repaid HK$7.4 million bank loan in 2018, being the full amount of
use of proceeds allocated for this purpose as set out in the Prospectus.
REBER2018FEE7TABERBTRITER (ANBREEFMFAERIERE
SEELAZEN2EE) -

In 2018, 2019 and 2020, the Group hired new graphic designers, product
engineers, R&D staff and marketing staff and purchased hardware & software for
new staff to expand our e-commerce customer base.

2018%F ~ 20194 KX 2020 F AL IS B 3T 60 T H R TR - B TI2AD - 3 A
BRMEAE WANMEIHEETUEMY UBEAEFHBESE -

In 2019, the Group purchased a new Metal 3D printer and certain ancillary products
to the printer for an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$2.1 million to
strengthen our design capabilities.

2019%F  REEBEAREBR2 1 BEETHE BN S E 3D ITEIM R E TITENH
PeEEm - AINGRERETEE T -

The Group obtained a property ownership certificate in 2020. The new factory is
located in Shenzhen. The consideration for the purchase is RMB27,928,530.00
(equivalent to approximately HK$31,838,524.20), being the aggregate purchase
price of the properties (inclusive of value added tax). The property comprises three
units, namely Unit 801, Unit 802 and Unit 803, 8th Floor, Block 1, Innovation
Wisdom Port, Huangpu Nandong Ziron Village, Shejing Town, Baoan District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC, which has a gross floor area of approximately 350.45
square meter, 357.85 square meter and 326.09 square meter, respectively (in
aggregate approximately 1,034.39 square meter).
REBER2020FREMERZT - IHRURNRIT - WEREBERARE
27,928,530.00 7T (A& R 4931,838,524.20870) (AE EWMEAER (S E
) TRBE=ZEEL AP BERINTERRDHEBESHERNE ANEFES
BEEX1®M8E0195F ~ 8025%/F & 80355 AR IEEEE &5 Al 4Y /3 350.45
FFK ~ 357.85F 5K K& 326.09F 75K (£ 2£491,034.39F 75 K) -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRR DN

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE

COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no significant
investment, material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures by the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have other
plans for material investments or capital assets for the coming year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholder(s)") by way of written resolutions
passed on 20 June 2018. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the date it
was adopted. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to participants for their contribution to our
Group and/or to enable our Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to our
Group and any entity in which our Group holds any equity interest
("Invested Entity").

BE HESBRAQAT LHHE
=
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BEMNANER -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmE DM

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (a) any
employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries and any Invested
Entity; (b) any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive directors) of our Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; (c) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of our Group or any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of our Group
or any Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to our Group or any
Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of our Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of our Group or any Invested Entity; (g) any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or
business development of our Group or any Invested Entity; and (h)
any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute, by way of joint venture, business alliance, other
business arrangement or otherwise, to the development and growth
of our Group.

Ordinary shares of the Company (“Share(s)”) may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme. The total number of Shares which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
on the Listing Date, which was 100,000,000 Shares, representing
approximately 10% of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report. The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company (or the subsidiaries) from time to
time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DM

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised, cancelled or outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of Share in issue for the
time being. Any further grant of options in excess of such limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
shall be subject to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the
Company with such participant and his/her close associates (or his/her
associates if such Participant is a connected person) abstaining from
voting. An offer of the grant of an option under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted within 21 days from the date of grant
together with a remittance of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for
the grant thereof. An option may be exercised during such period
as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such
period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless
the Directors otherwise determine and state in the offer to a grantee,
a grantee is not required to hold an option for any minimum period
nor achieve any performance targets before any options granted
under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised. The subscription
price for the Shares on the exercise of the option shall be determined
at the discretion of the Board which shall not be less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the grant of the option, which
must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share.

Please refer to paragraph headed “D. Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix V of the Prospectus for more details of the Share Option
Scheme. No share option has been granted, exercised , cancelled or
lapsed by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual
report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWR DN

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors, the Controlling Shareholder and their respective associates
(as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) that competed or might
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interest which any such person had or might have with the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the controlling Shareholders has made an annual
declaration to the Company that during the year ended 31
December 2020, he/she/it has complied with the terms of non-
competition undertakings (“Non-Competition Undertakings”)
given in favour of the Company. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have also reviewed the status of compliance by each of
the Controlling Shareholders with the undertakings stipulated in the
Non-Competition Undertakings and have confirmed that, as far as
the Independent Non-executive Directors can ascertain, there is no
breach of any of such undertaking.

INTEREST OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As at 31 December 2020, except for the compliance adviser
agreement entered into between the Company and TC Capital
International Limited (“TC Capital”) dated 23 February 2018, neither
TC Capital nor any of its directors, employees or close associates had
any interest in the securities of the Company or any member of the
Group (including options or rights to subscribe for such securities, if
any) pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board is of the view that the Company has met the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code") contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules during
the year ended 31 December 2020, except for the deviation as
specified and explained below with considered reasons for such
deviations.
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EEENWmR DM

Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement is currently
the chairman of our Board and the chief executive officer of our
Company. In view of the fact that Mr. Cheuk has been assuming day-
to-day responsibilities in operating and managing our Group since
1986 and the rapid development of our Group, the Board believes
that with the support of Mr. Cheuk’s extensive experience and
knowledge in the business of the Group, vesting the roles of both
chairman of our Board and chief executive officer of our Company
in Mr. Cheuk strengthens the solid and consistent leadership and
thereby allows for efficient business planning and decision which is in
the best interest to our Group.

The Directors consider that the deviation from provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstances. Notwithstanding
the above, the Board is of the view that this management structure
is effective for our Group’s operations, and sufficient checks and
balances are in place.

Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that Independent Non-
executive Directors and other Non-executive Directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Mr. Zhao Zhipeng (an Independent Non-executive
Director) did not attend the annual general meeting held during the
year ended 31 December 2020 because he had other commitment
on the date of the annual general meeting.

Except for code provision A.2.1 and A.6.7 of the CG Code, our
Company’s corporate governance practices have complied with the
CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirms
that the Directors complied with required standard of dealings and its
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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TRER/RS

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group, and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board is primarily responsible for overall business
plans and strategies of the Group, the implementation of the Group’s
policies and strategies, monitoring the business performance,
internal controls and risk management as well as supervising the
management of the Group.

The Board delegates daily management, administration and
operation of the Group to the management. The delegated functions
are reviewed by the Board to ensure that they accommodate the
needs of the Group.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
Directors, including two Executive Directors and four Independent
Non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board is set out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement (Chairman)

Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H.

Ms. Cheuk Heide Qil-gei (resigned on 1 September 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Sau Ning Homer M.H.

Mr. Zhao Zhipeng

Ms. Yee Wai Fong Wendy

Dr. Liu Ngai Wing

Biographical details of each Director and relationship between board
members are set out on page 33 to page 40 of this annual report.
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EXRER®RE

TERM OF APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Directors have the power to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the
existing Board. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed as an addition to the existing board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. The Directors to retire by
rotation shall include any Director who wishes to retire and not offer
himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment but as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire will (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy to ensure the effectiveness of the Board diversity policy.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement is currently the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company, responsible
for formulating the overall business development strategy and
planning of the Group. In view that Mr. Cheuk has been responsible
for the overall management of the Group since its inception, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Cheuk taking up both roles for effective management and business
development.

The Board considers that the balance of power and authority,
accountability and independent decision-making under our present
arrangement will not be impaired because of the diverse background
and experience of the other Executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors.

Further, the audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
has free and direct access to the Company’s external auditors and
independent professional advisers when it considers necessary.
Therefore, the Directors consider that the deviation from code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance.
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In order to maintain good corporate governance and to fully comply
with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board comprises six
other experienced and high-calibre individuals including two other
Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors
who would be able to offer advice from various perspectives. In
addition, for major decisions of the Group, the Company will
consult the appropriate Board committees and senior management.
Considering the present size and the scope of business of the Group,
we consider that it is not in the best interest of the Company and
the shareholders as a whole to separate the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer, because the separation would render
the decision-making process of the Company less efficient than the
current structure. Therefore, the Directors consider that the present
arrangement is beneficial to and in the interest of the Company and
the shareholders as a whole and the deviation from code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-
executive Directors, with at least one of them have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a specific terms of three
years and is subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Articles.
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The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the paragraph C.3 and D.3 of CG Code. The Audit Committee
consists of four Independent Non-executive Directors namely Mr. Yu
Sau Ning Homer M.H., Mr. Zhao Zhipeng, Ms. Yee Wai Fong Wendy
and Dr Liu Ngai Wing. Mr. Yu Sau Ning Homer M.H. is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system, to monitor the independence and objectivity of the external
auditor, to oversee the audit process, to perform the corporate
governance function and other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting standards and practices adopted by the
Group, and discussing auditing, internal control, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of annual results
and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
review of result for three months ended 31 March 2020, six months
ended 30 June 2020 and nine months ended 30 September 2020.

The Company established a Remuneration Committee of the
Company with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph B.1 of the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
consists of one Executive Director namely Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei
M.H. and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Zhao Zhipeng, Mr. Yu Sau Ning Homer M.H. and Dr. Liu Ngai Wing.
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Directors
on the policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies on such remuneration;
(i) determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving
performance-based remuneration with reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to time.

Two Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the
Relevant Period to review the remuneration structure of the Directors
and make recommendation on the adjusted remuneration packages
to the executive Directors. Details of the attendance records of each
Remuneration Committee members are set out on page 27 of this
annual report.
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The Company also established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee consists of one Executive Director namely
Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yu Sau Ning Homer M.H. and Ms. Yee Wai
Fong Wendy. Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The primary function of the Nomination
Committee is to, inter alia, make recommendations to the Board to
fill vacancies on the same. The secretary of the Company shall call a
meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of
candidates from Board members for consideration by the Nomination
Committee.

The Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by Board members. The factors which would
be used as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate for Director include, inter
alia, reputation for integrity, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate time
to discharge duties as Board member, diversity of the Board, and
such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business. The
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.

During the Relevant Period, one Nomination Committee meeting
was held to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board by reference to the criteria as mentioned above, assess the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors and make
recommendation on the re-election of the Directors at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 17 June 2019.

For a regular Board meeting, at least 14 days' notice will be given
to the Board members. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notices are generally given. An agenda and Board papers
of the regular meeting are sent to all Directors in advance within
reasonable time and all Directors are free to contribute and share
their views at the meeting. Minutes of all Board and committee
meetings are circulated to the Directors and open for inspection by
the Directors.

The Articles contains provisions requiring the Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving any contract or arrangement or any other proposal in
which such Directors or any of their close associates have a material
interest.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board Meetings, Audit
Committee Meeting, Nomination Committee Meeting, Remuneration
Committee Meeting and annual general meeting of the Company
held for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the table

below:

EEHFELEREEEHAE

BEERBEARNGHE2020F612HA31H8
IHFERTNEFSES  FXRZEee
EOREXLECCR FWNZECOH

BRBFERNG N LERERTIR TR -

Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting meeting
ESps ES8e3 ENZE998 RAZECEE HHZEEE3 RRAFAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement  £EE%4E 6/6 N/A TR 11 N/A TR 1/1
Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H. BR324+ > MH. 6/6 NAPER NA R ER NAFEA N
Ms. Cheuk Heide Oil-gei (resigned £ 3% £ (742020 F
on 1 September 2020) 9B 1BEE) 5/5 NA TR NA TEF 22 10
Independent Non-Executive ~ BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Yu SauNing Homer MH.  REZZ%4  MH, 6/6 34 n M N
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng BEREE 6/6 414 NA TEFE 22 11
Ms. Yee Wai Fong Wendy REFTT 6/6 444 11 NA TNER 11
Dr. Liu Ngai Wing BREET 6/6 N/A TR NATEFE N/A T g 1/1
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS TEERREE

According to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, continuous professional development of Directors,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group has selected suitable accounting policies in
accordance with accounting principles and applied them consistently.
A statement by the auditors of the Company about its responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditors’
report contained in this annual report. The Directors adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements
and are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 under Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules, all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. For the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors and a
majority of the senior management of the Group received induction
trainings from the Company’s Hong Kong legal adviser in respect
of the ongoing obligations, duties and responsibilities of Directors
of publicly listed companies in Hong Kong under the Companies
Ordinance, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Company will from time to time provide briefings to all Directors
to refresh their duties and responsibilities. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend relevant training courses provided by legal
advisers and/or any appropriate institutions.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Xie Xing is the company secretary of the Company. Please refer to
the section headed "Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report for the biographical details of the
company secretary of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Xie has undertaken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance
with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The Company engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as its
Auditors for the year ended 31 December 2020. The analysis of the
auditors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set
out as follow:

¥ B B i A
AAFIEZERGSMELAERA A
EEHEEZ20200F12 A3 HIEFENK
HEh - B E 20206 12 A31BIEFE 2 #
HENFHB AT T

Amount of

Type of services provided by external auditors fees
SN IR BT R AR IS E A
HK$'000

FHET

Audit services BNk 860
Non-audit service EEZR -
Total Bt 860

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board has responsibility for maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
Board has delegated responsibility to the Audit Committee to review
the Group’s risk management and internal control matters annually.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not have an
internal audit function as required under code provision C.2.5 of
the CG Code. The Company has engaged an external independent
internal control consultant to review the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee reviewed the
internal control review report issued by the external independent
consultant on the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 and
considered that they are effective and adequate. The Board assessed
the effectiveness of internal control systems by considering the
internal control review report and reviews performed by the Audit
Committee and concurred the same.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") and the GEM Listing Rules. The Group
discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe
harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept
strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements are not false or misleading
as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced
way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative
facts.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the interests of the
shareholder of the Company and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. In proposing any dividend payout, the
Board shall also take into account, inter alia:

1. the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the other members of the Group;

3. economic conditions and other internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group;

4. business strategies of the Group, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-term

growth aspect of the business;

5. the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group;

6. statutory and regulatory restrictions; and
7. other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate from time to
time.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SUCH MEETING

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings shall at all time have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

To ensure that the shareholders and potential investors are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, the Company has established
several channels to communicate with the shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports, quarterly reports and circulars are issued in printed
form and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
at www.hkexnews.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.hanveygroup.com.hk;

(i) periodic announcements are published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iiiy corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website; and

(iv) annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for

the shareholders to make comments and exchange views with
the Directors and senior management.
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The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential
investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and
the public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by
post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there has been no change in
the Company’s Memorandum and the Articles.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

EENSREERNBERERE

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement (5 & &), aged 62, is the
chairman of our Board, our founder, our Executive Director, one of
our Controlling Shareholders and our Chief Executive Officer. He is
also the chairperson of our Nomination Committee. He is a director
of each of the operating subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Cheuk is
primarily responsible for formulating our Group's overall strategy
planning, overseeing sales and marketing, product development, and
overall management of our Group’s business.

Mr. Cheuk has more than 32 years of experience in the watch
industry, particularly in product design development, sales and
marketing. He was the vice chairman of the 17th session of and
chairman of the 18th session of The Federation of Hong Kong Watch
Trades & Industries Limited and an advisor of The Federation of Hong
Kong Watch Trades & Industries Limited since 2000. He was also a
member of Watches and Clocks Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council from 1996 to 2007.

Mr. Cheuk obtained a Master's Degree of Business Administration
(executive) from the City University of Hong Kong in November 2001.
He was admitted as an honorary fellow of the Professional Validation
Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector in June 2015. He was also
awarded the Young Industrialist Awards for the year 1998/1999 by
the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council and an awardee member
of the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council in November 1998.
Mr. Cheuk was also a director of the 32nd board of directors of Yan
Oi Tong.

He is the spouse of Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H., father of Ms.
Cheuk Heide Qil-gei and brother-in-law of Ms. Au Hung Wai Didy.

Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H. (“Mrs. Cheuk”) (B#F ), aged
60, is our Executive Director, one of our Controlling Shareholders
and the legal representative of Shenzhen 3 Wells Watch Company
Limited. She is a member of our Remuneration Committee. She is
also a director of each of the operating subsidiaries of our Group.
She is primarily responsible for overseeing our Group’s administrative,
human resources and financial management, and assisting in the
management of our Group’s business.

Mrs. Cheuk has more than 31 years of experience in the watch
industry. Prior to joining our Group, she worked in the Finance
Department in China Resources Textiles Company Limited from July
1978 to January 1985 and worked as a deputy financial manager in
China Resources Silk Co., Ltd from January 1985 to November 1987.
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EERGREEENERFS

Mrs. Cheuk was awarded the China’s Hundred Outstanding Women
Entrepreneurs* (B B & £ H 2B %K) by the China Association
of Woman Entrepreneurs* (F B Z & ¥ R % &) in October 2006
and was awarded the Medal of Honour (MH) by the Government of
the HKSAR in July 2010. She was a director, the vice chairlady and
the chairlady of Yan Oi Tong from 2004 to 2006, 2006 to 2009 and
2009 to 2010 respectively. She was a committee member of the
tenth Hubei Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference* (Bl A RBURHE g M1t E £ +
JEZ& 8 €% 8). She is currently a permanent honorary committee
member of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, Hong Kong
and a director of Po Leung Kuk.

Mrs. Cheuk obtained a Diploma of Graduate Gemologist from the
Gemological Institute of America in March 2003. Mrs. Cheuk is the
spouse of Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement, mother of Ms. Cheuk
Heide Oil-gei and sister of Ms. Au Hung Wai Didy.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Sau Ning Homer M.H. (RE £), aged 68, is our
Independent Non-executive Director, the chairperson of our Audit
Committee, and a member of our Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Mr. Yu is responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to our Board, the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yu has 42 years of experience in the wholesale and retail markets
of wine and spirit, skincare and household products. He has been
the chief executive officer of Cheong Hing Store Ltd., Cheong Hing
(1917) Limited, Youthful Technology International Ltd. and Youthful
Wonder Limited since 1981, 1981, 1989 and 2014 respectively. In
June 2016, he founded and became the director of One Belt One
Road Eurasia Centre (HK) Limited.
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Mr. Yu was awarded the Chevalier de |'ordre national du Merite
by the Government of France in June 1996 and was awarded the
medal of honour by the Government of the HKSAR in 1999. He
was appointed as a member of the eleventh and twelfth National
People’s Congress HKSAR Representative Elective Committee and
was appointed as a committee member of the first Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Huangpu, Guangzhou in
August 2015. He was also appointed as a member by the Consumer
Council for the period between 2003 and 2008. In December 2008,
he received the honorary decoration award from the Chamber of
Beauty Culture & Cosmetics of All-China Federation of Industry &
Commerce. He is currently a member of the Customer Consultative
Group of CLP Power Hong Kong Limited, and an elected member
of the retailer category of Quality Tourism Services Association
Governing Council (QTSA) and the chairman of the Better Business
Environment Committee of QTSA. He has been the chairman of
the seventh Professional’s Committee of Kowloon Federation of
Association since June 2015. He has been an honorary life president
of the Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of Hong Kong Ltd. since
1996.

Mr. Yu obtained a Degree of Master of Science from the National
University of Ireland in April 2003. He was admitted as honorary
senior fellow by the Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong
Business Sector (PVCBS) in November 2005, and was the president of
the 6th session of the executive committee of PVCBS.

Mr. ZHAO Zhipeng (i % f§), aged 37, is our Independent Non-
executive Director, the chairperson of our Remuneration Committee,
and a member of our Audit Committee. Mr. Zhao is responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgment to our Board, the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Zhao has more than seven years of experience in the legal
industry. Prior to joining our Group, he worked as a trainee solicitor
at Patrick Mak & Tse from July 2011 to December 2013 and as an
assistant solicitor in the same firm from December 2013 to March
2016. He became a partner of the said firm since 2016. He has been
an independent non-executive director of Kin Pang Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1722), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, since November 2017.
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Mr. Zhao obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Laws from The East
China University of Political Science and Law in July 2006, a Degree
of Master of Laws from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
December 2007, a Juris Doctor Degree from the City University of
Hong Kong in October 2009 and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
from the City University of Hong Kong in July 2011. He was admitted
to practice law as a solicitor in Hong Kong in December 2013.

Ms. YEE Wai Fong Wendy (5R23), aged 55, is our Independent
Non-executive Director and a member of our Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee. She is responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to our Board, the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee.

Ms. Yee has more than 27 years of experience in finance and
accounting areas in the Asia Pacific. Prior to joining our Group,
she was a senior auditor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from July
1988 to April 1993. From July 1993 to November 2006 she has
served a number of positions in the Motorola Asia Pacific Limited,
a multinational telecommunications company listed in the United
States, with her last position as a controller for Hong Kong, the
Philippines and the business development team of its networks and
enterprise business. From December 2006 to April 2010 she has
served a number of position in Ecolab Limited, a subsidiary of Ecolab
Inc., a company listed in the United States, with her last position as
Asia control director. From May 2010 to July 2012 she served as a
vice president of finance in Active-Semi International, Inc. From July
2012 to June 2013, she worked as a senior director of finance and
accounting, Asia, at Mikli Asia Limited. She then served as a director
of finance from April 2014 to June 2017 at Targus Asia Pacific
Limited.

Ms. Yee obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Social Sciences from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1988 and a Degree of Bachelor
of Science from the University of London in August 2002. She further
obtained a Degree of Master of Business Administration from the
University of Dubuque in December 2002. She has been admitted
as a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales in February 2006, and as an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since April 1992.
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Dr. Liu Ngai Wing (BB % %8), aged 70, is our Independent Non-
executive Director. He is a member of our Remuneration Committee.
He is responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to our Board. Dr. Liu was awarded a Master Degree of
Business Administration Degree from The Open University of Hong
Kong in December 1999. He then obtained a Master of Science
degree in Hotel and Tourism Management in The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in November 2001. He further obtained a
Master of Science Degree in Global Business from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in December 2002, a PhD Degree from
the Hotel and Tourism Management School of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in October 2008, a Master of Arts Degree in
China Studies from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
in November 2011, a Master of Arts Degree in Asia and International
Studies from The City University of Hong Kong in February 2013,
a Doctor of Business Administration Degree from Curtin University
of Technology in January 2013, a Master of Arts Degree in Practical
Philosophy from Lingnan University in November 2015, Master of
Arts Degree in Chinese Studies from Chu Hai College of Higher
Education in October 2017, and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Chinese
Humanities from The Open University of Hong Kong in August 2018.

Dr. Liu is an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries, an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of The Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants.
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Dr. Liu worked as a chief executive officer and a chairman at Yoshiya
International Corporation, Limited (currently known as Capital Estate
Limited, Stock Code 193), a company of which shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from October 1996 to April
2002. He was an executive director of eSun Holdings Limited (Stock
Code 571), a company of which shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, from November 1998 to May 2008. He was
an independent non-executive director and the chairman of the audit
committee of Hang Fung Gold Technology Limited (currently known
as 3D-GOLD Jewellery Holdings Limited (“3D-GOLD")), a company
of which shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
but were subsequently delisted on 9 July 2012, from March 2000 to
December 2008. Shares in 3D-GOLD were suspended from trading
since 29 September 2008 and it was announced on the same day
that Dr. Lam Sai Wing (“Dr. Lam”), the then chairman of 3D-GOLD
had passed away and that technical breaches of certain loan facilities
may arise as a result of Dr. Lam ceasing to be chairman of 3D-GOLD.
On 14 October 2008 it was announced that certain wholesale trade
receivables of 3D-GOLD might not be recoverable, and a winding-
up petition for 3D-GOLD was filed by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited on 17 October 2008. The winding-up
petition was subsequently adjourned to 13 July 2011 based on the
available announcement of 3D-GOLD. The shares of 3D-GOLD were
delisted with effect from 9 July 2011 by the Stock Exchange. Since
Dr. Liu’s resignation from the board of directors of 3D-GOLD on 5
December 2008, he has been unaware of any further developments
in the affairs of 3D-GOLD.

Dr. Liu also acted as the executive director and chief executive
officer of Singapore Hong Kong Properties Investment Limited
(currently known as China Minsheng Financial Holding Corporation
Limited, Stock Code 245), a company of which shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from September 2000 to
December 2001. He was an independent non-executive director of
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited (currently known as Maxnerva
Technology Services Limited, Stock Code 1037), a company of
which shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
from September 2004 to December 2015. He was an independent
non-executive director of Dorsett Hospitality International Limited
("Dorsett Hospitality "), a company of which shares were listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange but which were delisted on 16
October 2015, from September 2010 to October 2015. After Dorsett
Hospitality was delisted, Dr. Liu continued to be its director until
March 2016. He currently holds the position as an executive director
at Miranda Company Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. XIE Xing (# £), aged 40, is our chief financial officer and
company secretary. He is responsible for overseeing our financial
reporting, financial planning, treasury, financial control and company
secretarial matters.

Mr. Xie has more than 13 years of experience in the accounting and
financial field. Prior to joining our Group, he worked at KPMG from
July 2006 to February 2008, with his last position as an accountant.
Subsequently, he worked as a financial and planning manager at
Garona (HK) Limited from February 2008 to November 2008, as an
accountant at Mapletree Logistics Management (HK) Limited from
May 2009 to June 2010, as a business and finance manager at
Vantage Sourced Limited from June 2010 to December 2012 and as
a senior financial analyst at 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited from
December 2011 to January 2014. In July 2014, he co-founded and
became a director of Makeup Gallery Limited. From July 2015 to
April 2017, he worked as a financial analyst at Metito China Holdings
Limited. He rejoined 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited as the chief
financial officer in May 2017.

He obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Science with honour in Applied
Physics from the Hong Kong Baptist University in December 2003,
a Degree of Master of Philosophy in Physics from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in November 2005 and a
Degree of Master of Economics from The University of Hong Kong in
November 2019. He has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since May 2011.

Mr. LAU Yue Man (2| & X), aged 51, is our general manager
and a director of Shenzhen 3 Wells Watch Company Limited. He is
responsible for overseeing daily operation of our PRC production
plant, and resolving production and products issues.

Mr. Lau has over 25 years of experience in management. Prior to
joining our Group, he worked as a general manager in Golden Island
Watch Industrial (Shenzhen) Limited* (& &k % CGEI) BRE A 7))
from June 1994 to December 1996, as a general manager in Han Lin
Metal Products Manufactory Limited* (2% & BE KB E R A 7))
from January 1997 to April 2002, and as a technical director in Sutec
(H.K.) Limited from August 2002 to January 2014.
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Ms. AU Hung Wai Didy (B 4L £), aged 54, is our vice general
manager. She is responsible for overseeing research and development
and procurement department.

Ms. Au has more than 32 years of experience in the watch industry.
She joined 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited in October 1986 as a
quality controller and was promoted to purchase clerk in September
1988. She left 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited in June 1996 and
rejoined 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited in January 1997 as a
purchase and research and development manager, and she is
currently the vice general manager (China operation).

She is the sister of Mrs. Cheuk, sister-in-law of Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong
Clement and aunt of Ms. Cheuk Heide Qil-gei.

Ms. CHEUK Heide Oil-gei (£ 8l3#), aged 32, is our in-house legal
counsel. She is currently responsible for overseeing the sales and
marketing and business development, management of our Group’s
business, and advising on legal matters.

Ms. Cheuk has 7 years of experience in the watch industry. Prior
to joining our Group, she worked as a legal intern and paralegal at
Vidler & Co. Solicitors from August 2010 to May 2011 and as a solar
campaign associate at Environment California from August 2012 to
October 2012.

Ms. Cheuk obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Laws from the University
of Durham in July 2010 and a Degree of Master of Laws from the
Duke University in May 2012. She was admitted to practice as an
attorney and counsellor at law in all courts of the State of New York
in June 2017.

Ms. Cheuk is the daughter of Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement and
Mrs. Cheuk and the niece of Ms. Au Hung Wai Didy.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design and development,
manufacturing and distribution of watch products on ODM basis for
watch manufacturers, brand owners and watch importers across the
globe.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the financial positions of the Company and of the Group as at that
date are set out in the audited consolidated financial statements on
pages 74 to 180 of this annual report.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on page 180 in the annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue attributable
to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
45.0% (2019: 46.3%) of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 79.25% (2019: 75.6%) of the Group’s total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the costs incurred in
respect of the Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately
7.2% (2019: 7.0%) of the Group’s total cost of services and materials
sold incurred and the costs incurred in respect of the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 29.86% (2019:
32.9%) of the Group’s total cost of services and materials sold
incurred.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any
shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge of the Directors
own 5% or more of the issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in any the Group’s major customers or suppliers
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended 31
December 2020.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 77 and in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

None of the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company is incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has not
entered into any connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions that are not exempted under the GEM Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements. To the best knowledge
of the Directors, none of these related party transactions constitutes
connected transactions that need to be disclosed under the GEM
Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year ended 31 December
2020 and analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators and prospectus of the Group’s business are
provided in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on page 5 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 20 of the
annual report and the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to promoting sustainability both in
term of business development and impact to the environment.
The Group has complied with all the relevant environmental
protection law and regulations that have significant impact on
the Group's business where the Group is operating. The Group
will review its environmental practices from time to time and will
consider implementing further measures and practices to enhance
sustainability whenever appropriate and possible.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 54 to 66
of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND

REGULATIONS

The Group seeks to uphold high standard of integrity in all aspects of
business and is committed to ensure that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulatory requirements and has
formulated and adopted various internal control measures, approval
procedures and training within all business units at all levels of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2020, there has been
no violation or breach of relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Company.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group emphasises on maintaining good relationship with its
stakeholders and considers it a key element to sustainable business
growth.

Employees

The Group has always been people-oriented and has attached great
importance to human resource management. We attract excellent
talents through fair recruitment policy and provide employees with
training opportunities, good career development prospect and
growth opportunities. From time to time, we offer our employees
remuneration packages that are comprehensive and attractive. Some
employees are granted options under the Share Option Scheme
in recognition of their contribution. We also value our employee’s
physical and mental development. Diverse events and activities are
organised for the employees for fostering work-life balance and
personal growth.

Customers

The Group is committed to offering our customers products and
services to the best of our ability. We highly value comments and
suggestions of our customers and have always maintained effective
communications with the customers. We will continue to reach
out for current and prospective customers through, inter-alia, on-
site visits and major customers satisfaction surveys. We believe that
customers’ feedback would help us to identify areas of improvement
and advance us to achieve excellence.

Suppliers

Maintaining good relationship with suppliers is essential to the
Group’s business performance and growth because suppliers can
have direct influence over the quality of the products and services
and customer satisfaction. We adopt a “Management Measures for
Suppliers” in respect of the supplier selection procedures, quality
testing methods and comprehensive appraisal and evaluation
system on potential and existing suppliers and their products and
performance. We are committed to establishing a close and long-
term cooperation relationship with business partners.
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Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to our Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

We operate in a highly competitive environment and we
cannot assure you that we will be able to grow or sustain our
competitiveness

Watch manufacturing in the PRC is highly competitive and
fragmented with over 1,000 players. The pricing of and demand for
our watches are significantly affected by the intensity of competition
we face. Our competitors may have substantially greater financial and
technological resources, design and manufacturing capacities and
stronger customer and supplier relationships than we do. As a result,
we cannot assure you that we may be able to compete effectively
with these competitors and the competitive pressures could adversely
affect our business and financial condition and results of operations.

Changes in existing laws and regulations and the imposition of
new laws, regulations, restrictions and any other entry barriers
in relation to our industry may increase our costs

We are subject to compliance with various laws and regulations
relating to the production and sales of watches in the jurisdictions in
which we operate. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations
may result in imposition of conditions on or the suspension of sale or
seizure of our products, or significant penalties or claims. In the event
that the countries in which we operate increase the stringency of
such laws and regulations, our operating costs may increase and we
may not be able to pass these additional costs onto our customers.
Further, in the event that any jurisdiction in which we operate or plan
to operate impose any new laws, regulations, restrictions or other
barriers to entry, our ability to expand may be limited and our growth
and development may be adversely affected.
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We operate our production facility in the PRC. A substantial part
of parts and components are sourced from various suppliers who
are mostly Hong Kong companies with production facilities in the
PRC. Accordingly, the business, results of operations and financial
condition as well as prospects of our Group are subject, to a
significant degree, to the economic, political and legal developments
in the PRC.

Political and economic policies of the PRC Government may
affect our business and results of operations and may result in
our inability to sustain our growth and expansion strategies
The PRC economy has largely been a centrally planned economy,
which differs from other developed economies of the world in many
respects, including:

° the degree of the PRC Government’s involvement;

e the growth rate and degree of development;

e the uniformity in implementation and enforcement of laws;
° the content of and control over capital investment;

e the control of foreign exchange; and

e the allocation of resources.

The PRC economy has been transitioning from a centrally planned
economy to a more market-oriented economy. For approximately
three decades, the PRC Government has implemented economic
reform measures to utilise market forces in the development of the
PRC economy. The PRC economy has grown significantly in recent
decades, though we cannot assure you that this growth will continue
or continue at the same pace.

In addition, the PRC Government continues to play a significant role
in regulating industries and the economy through policy measured.
As such, we cannot assure you that we will not be adversely affected
by the measures that are under continuous adjustments. Also, the
PRC Government has implemented various measures to guide the
allocation of resources. Some of these measures may benefit the
overall economy of the PRC, but may also have a negative impact on
the watch industry or on us. For example, our financial results may be
adversely affected by government control over capital investments or
changes in tax regulations that are applicable to us.

Details of financial risks are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement (Chairman)

Ms. AU Corona Ching Mei M.H.

Ms. CHEUK Heide QOil-gei (resigned on 1 September 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. YU Sau Ning Homer M.H.

Mr. ZHAO Zhipeng

Ms. YEE Wai Fong Wendy

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
and shall be eligible for re-election. Every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, Mr. Zhao Zhipeng
and Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H. will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
There is no change in the information of Directors, which is required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 33 to 40 of the annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT
CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions and connected transactions
disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, no
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended
31 December 2020.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance that is significant to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a person who at any time was a Director or his connected
entity had, directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance
has been made between the Company or any one of its subsidiaries
and a Controlling Shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2020 or as at the date of this annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to Article 164 of the Articles, the Directors, secretary and
other officers and every auditor for the time being of the Company
and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being acting in
relation to any of the affairs of the Company and everyone of them,
and everyone of their heirs, executors and administrators, shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or any of
their heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices or trusts; and none of them shall be answerable for the acts,
receipts, neglects or defaults of the other or others of them or for
joining in any receipts for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers
or other persons with whom any moneys or effects belonging to the
Company shall or may be lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for
insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any moneys of
or belonging to the Company shall be placed out on or invested, or
for any other loss, misfortune or damage which may happen in the
execution of their respective offices or trusts, or in relation thereto;
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect
of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said persons.
Such provision was in force during the year ended 31 December
2020. In addition, the Company has also maintained Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance during the year ended 31 December 2020,
which provides appropriate cover for the directors and officers of the
Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not enter into or have
any management and administration contracts in respect of the
whole or any principal business of the Company.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures or any associated corporation” below, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2020 were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or the Company’s subsidiary or holding company
or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OR ANY ASSOCIATED

CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company:

EERBEETHRAERR®D -
RGO RESHNERXBHE
A= E

MN2020F 12 A31H BEERARAES
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PARE)  WRBRARFIRIEESMAE
EHIE 3528 AEE 2 B 2R RA
B IR GEM ETARBIZE 546 255 5.68
EBMEARNNE M2 s MR B
T

RARBIRG VLT A -
Long position

"R

Percentage of

Number of total number

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest ordinary shares of shares

MR EE

EEng B, ERHE EBREE Bok

Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong, Clement Interest in controlled corporation 620,000,000 62%

("Mr. Cheuk”) (Note)

sEBRE(EERE]D (Hit) AR HEE S 620,000,000 fi% 62%

Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H. Interest in controlled corporation 620,000,000 62%
("Mrs. Cheuk") (Note)

BiEFEz+ MH. ([EAK]) REHEE R 620,000,000 fi% 62%

(K1)

Note: 620,000,000 shares of the Company are registered in the name of Million
Easy Enterprises Ltd. (“Million Easy”), the entire issued share capital of
which are legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk in
equal shares. Under the SFO, both Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk are deemed
to be interest in all the shares of the Company held by Million Easy.
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Long position in the ordinary shares of associated corporation:

RAEHE A B BB AR

Long position

"R

Name of Capacity/ Number of  Percentage of

associated Nature of ordinary total number

Name of Director corporation Interest shares of shares

56/ RGO EE

E=pE HEEEER ERME ZEREE Bk

Mr. Cheuk Million Easy Beneficial Interest 1 50%
sEE B8H B

Mrs. Cheuk Million Easy Beneficial Interest 1 50%
BEARK BH Ean

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2020, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons/entities have an
interest or a short position in the shares or the underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in shares of the Company:

FERRRART 2R G K AEE
BRONERR HKXR

R2020F 12 A31H  BESEHAQNAH
BITHRABIN  THAL/ EBENRARR
M5 AR D R A R IEESF R EE
B2 336 1§78 R0 8 AN A A B) 2 Re i P Y 4
AR

RARBIRGO TR -
Long position

"R

Percentage of

Number of total number

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest ordinary shares of shares
HRD B

=x 5% EatE EEREE Bok
Million Easy Beneficial Interest 620,000,000 62%
B5H EnEn 620,000,000 fi% 62%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors are
not aware of any other persons/entities (other than a Director and
chief executive of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken
to have any interests or short position in any shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2020. The Company had not redeemed any of its listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2020.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of its respective associates has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules, or has any other conflict of interests with the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 21 to 32 of this annual
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company maintained the amount of public float as required under
the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this annual report.

DIVIDEND
The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

DONATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made
charitable and other donations amounting to approximately HK$0.78
million (2019: HK$1.87 million).

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. The Company has not changed auditor during any
of past three years. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Mr. CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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HtEREGRS

12 1

ABOUT THE REPORT

With the growing consciousness and importance of sustainability, the
Group takes this opportunity to scrutinise management practices that
are material to stakeholders, for example, environmental protection,
product quality and employee care.

This report (the "ESG Report”) is prepared in with reference to the
ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing
Rules. The report aims to improve stakeholders’ understanding and
to introduce ongoing sustainability initiatives directed towards the
fulfilment of our obligations to society and the environment in which
we operate.

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report includes the business
operations of the Group in both Hong Kong and the PRC during
the reporting period for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Reporting Period”) relating to the overall performance, risks,
strategies, measures and commitments of four aspects: quality of
working environment, environmental protection, operating practices
and community participation.

Through this ESG Report, the Group makes public and detailed
disclosure and elaboration of environmental, social and governance
("ESG") and other non-financial matters of the Company. The Group
intended the ESG Report disclosures to provide the opportunity
to review our ESG performance and governance achievements, as
well as serve as a platform for the public to understand our social
responsibility values and non-financial business achievements.
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RE -#HEgRERRSE

OVERALL APPROACHES AND POLICIES

The Group has been persistently creating economic benefits,
promoting business development and performing its corporate social
responsibility to strike a balance between all parties, while advocating
corporate integrity in its pursuit of sustainable development. For our
sustainable development, we are committed to:

e ensuring the compliance with laws, regulations and standards
applicable to our operations in an ethical and transparent
manner;

e maintaining a long-term and sustainable relationship by
listening to the voice of the community to understand the social
needs;

e establishing and maintaining open and transparent
communications with local communities and the public
on matters regarding safety, environment and community
relationship; and

e protecting the integrity, health, and benefits of stakeholders
on issues such as cooperation and respect for employees,
communities and environment, for the sake of being recognised
as a company with sustainable development.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback in regards to our
businesses and ESG aspects. With the goal to strengthen the
sustainability approach and performance of the Group, we put effort
in maintaining a close communication with our key stakeholders,
including government and regulatory authorities, shareholders,
employees, customers, suppliers, and the general public.
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ENVIRONMENT

The Company, being one of the major watch manufacturers in Hong
Kong, is committed to promoting sustainability both in terms of
business development and impact to the environment. We embrace
principles and practices that help minimise our carbon footprint,
energy consumption and climate change impacts.

The factory of the Group in Shenzhen is regulated by the
“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the “Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Cleaner Production Promotion Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and the “Atmospheric Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
other environmental protection regulatory standards issued by the
central and local governments.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is not aware of any material
non-compliance of the PRC environmental protection laws and
regulations.

Emissions

Air pollutants and greenhouse gas emissions

During the Reporting Period, air pollutants emitted from the Group
such as sulphur oxides (“SOx"), nitrogen oxides (“NOyx") and
particulate matter (“PM") were mainly generated from vehicles used
for transportation.

To minimise the adverse impact on the environment, all vehicles and
machineries of the Group are driven by unleaded petrol and electricity
respectively.

The main source of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions is derived
from direct emission from the mobile combustion sources (“Scope
1"), indirect emission from acquired electricity emissions (“Scope 2")
and other indirect emissions (“Scope 3").
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Emissions
HHE
Type of emission Unit 2020 2019
i By 2020 20194
Air emissions
BERYEE
Nitrogen oxides g 33,534 30,767
BENLY =)
Sulphur oxides g 224 333
=Rl %
Respiratory suspended particles g 2,469 2,265
AR ABRFHLF I
GHG emissions
BERBHENE
Scope 1 Tonnes CO,e 41 61
#E1 W —S(CREE
Scope 2 Tonnes CO.,e 254 328
&E2 WS tIREE
Scope 3 Tonnes CO,e 15 44
=3 WSt EE
Total (Scope 1, 2 & 3) Tonnes CO,e 310 433
wE(&BE - 2R%3) W — A LIREE
Emission intensity Per HK$1M turnover 2.22 2.19
mEnE GHBETEXR
Hazardous and non-hazardous waste BFERBEZEEY

Waste production was mainly attributed to the discarded packaging
materials and domestic wastes of office, therefore hazardous wastes
produced are immaterial. Our non-hazardous wastes are disposed
off at the refuse collection points set in the premise of the industrial
park. The Group had conducted environment impact assessment
on the production facilities and result indicated that emissions of air
pollutants, greenhouse gases, water, sewage and non-hazardous

wastes comply with the PRC regulations.

The following measures have been implemented by the Group:

—  duplex printings and reuse single-sided printed papers,

— using durable tableware instead of non-recyclable or disposable

ones in staff canteen in PRC; and

- providing reusable face mask and protective cap to staff.
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Use of resources

The Group are proactively seeking opportunities to minimise the
negative impact of business activities on the environment. In order
to reduce the use of resources, the Group actively implemented
measures in energy conservation and pollution reduction.

Electricity

The major energy consumption of the Group in daily operations is
electricity consumed in the operations. The Group has formulated
rules and regulations to achieve the goal of electricity saving and
efficient consumption. The relevant specific measures are as follows:

e turns off all unnecessary lightings, air conditioner and other
office equipment in office areas, conference rooms when not in
use;

e maintains indoor temperature at an optimal, comfortable level
to conserve energy; and

e enhances the maintenance and overhaul of equipment,
maintain the best condition of all electronic equipment for
effective use of electricity.
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Water

The main business of the Group is manufacturing and distribution
of watch products on ODM watches, which do not rely heavily on
energy consumption nor water resources and do not have any issue
in sourcing water. Water usage in both Hong Kong and the PRC
operations are mainly due to domestic consumption. In the process
of quality checking (watches’ water resistance test), only limited
amount of water is used while the assembly lines do not produce any
industrial sewage. To reduce consumptions, water is reused whatever
possible.

Zk
AEBTLEEBREENDHTERER
D ERE LR EFE MK EIR - FEREUK
R ETEIMERE - FENTREZENH
KERRERHER -BERTBES R
PIfEfE R 2 BB F R P K IERE -
AR AR D A A T EK » RRAH
o BMEEEEMAK

Intensity
Resources utilisation Unit Usage (unit per HK$1M turnover)
BE
EIRF A By ERE (BEBBTEXER)
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 F 20194 2020 20194F
Electricity
B
Office kWh 56,617 53,093 406 268
WAE T R B
Factory kWh 280,029 364,005 2,010 1,838
TR TR
Water Tonne 3,337 4,284 24 22
7K ]
Petrol L 15,209 22,262 109 112
i Ft
Paper Kg 1,764 1,609 13 8
it T

Driven by the belief in maintaining sustainability, the Group strives
to ensure efficient use of natural resources, including energy,
materials and auxiliary materials, with the effective implementation
of environmental protection measures, the consumption intensity of
electricity in office and factory have dropped by about 51% and 9%
respectively.

REBEBERUFEERES  SHERS
BERBAER  BIEER - M E &)
M BBERREENBRENR  HAE
NIMAEEEEDAITET 51% % 9% °
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Packaging materials

The Group’s major product is watch, where most of the packaging
materials are used for presentation of products. During the Reporting
Period, the packaging materials consumed of the Group and its
intensity were as follows:

BRHH

AEBNEITEEMSTER KEOINEER
MHEOBEERERR - BEHR - XEEH
FORFER BEM B REBEE TR

Intensity (unit

per HK$1M
Type Unit Usage turnover)
BnE
(SE8ER
Rl B ERE ES:)
Gift box box 34,410 247
Ena =
Plastic packing materials kg 2,097 15
BRBEM B T

The environmental and natural resources

To lower the adverse environmental impact and use of natural
resources, the management of the Group will evaluate the policies
from time to time to create sustainable environmental value such
as energy-saving initiative. The Group pursues the best practice for
environmental protection. In addition to complying with related
environmental laws and regulations and international standards for
proper natural environment preservation, the Group has integrated
the concept of environmental protection and natural resource
conservation into its internal management and daily operations in
order to achieve the aim of environmental sustainability.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Company’s success relies on the continued support of its
dedicated workforce, the most valuable asset for sustaining business.
The Group respects and cares for our employees by creating
a delightful and safe workplace, as well as providing training
opportunities.

Employment

All labour related issues in terms of compensation, working hours,
rest periods, recruitment and promotion, dismissal procedures, equal
opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination are in compliance with
the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong and the Labour Law of the
PRC.

The Company is committed to creating a working atmosphere free
of discrimination and harassment. Discriminatory acts or motives in
all phases of employment on the grounds of nationality, physical
ability, gender, age and any other legally protected status are strictly
prohibited in the Group. Employees are encouraged to report any
unlawful discrimination or any form of harassment. The Group
investigates expeditiously and takes appropriate corrective actions
once we have confirmed the allegations.

In addition to performance bonus and statutory benefits, the Group
offers to the employees other benefits including healthcare benefits,
maternity and paternity leave, marriage leave, and birthday leaves,
etc. On top of the compulsory social insurance under the Labour Law
in the PRC, employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to annual
health examinations.

The Group strives to maintain employee turnover rate at an
acceptable level so as to facilitate accumulation of professional skills
and experience. The turnover of staff is mainly due to the changes in
the number of part-time workers in workshop, which were hired for
ad-hoc production projects.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is not aware of any material
non-compliance relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity and discriminations.
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Percentage of Staff turnover

No. of staff total staff rate
HETHAE BT
BIgE Aot mE=E
Total number of employees EEAH 112 100 58.7
Gender 15
Male S 39 34.6 76.1
Female e 73 65.4 48.7
Age Group FERA
18-30 18 = 3073% 18 15.9 66.3
31-40 31 2405 49 43.9 57.8
41-50 41250738 32 29.0 54.4
51 or above 515 A 13 11.2 61.1
Geographical region PR [ 15
China H 92 82.2 66.3
Hong Kong B 20 17.8 1.1
Employee categories S5
Senior management mBREEE 6 5.6 0
Middle management PREREE 16 14.0 21.9
General staff TmeT 90 80.4 66.2
Service period HRE R
Less than 5 years DRAF 51 458 79.6
5 to 10 years AE+F 24 21.5 19.9
Over 10 years +EB 37 32.7 56.7
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Health and Safety

The Group proactively works to reduce injury risks and occupational
diseases by establishing related management systems and organising
safety training for its workforce.

The Group aims to ensure a safe occupational environment and
manage health and safety risk at our production facilities. Warning
signs are posted at prominent positions, with potential health
impacts, handling procedures and preventive measures. Personal
protective equipment such as safety gloves, masks and safety goggles
are provided and required at work. Evaluation of safety practices
is conducted on a regular basis. During the Reporting Period, the
Group is not aware of any non-compliance of all the relevant laws
and regulations related to providing safe environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards, including the Hong Kong's
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, as well as Production
Safety Law (% & 4 & /&) and Provisions on the Supervision and
Administration of Occupational Health at Work Sites{ T {35 Ffr B 3
BB BEIEMRE)of the PRC.
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Occupational health and safety statistics 2020 2019
BERERZZHE 2020 F 20194
Number of lost days due to work injury Nil Nil
ETEEEANTIIERE i i
Number of work-related fatalities Nil Nil
TYESRT AEL 4 i
Number of work injuries Nil Nil
THBAR 4 i
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Training and Development

The Group aims at providing suitable and valuable opportunities
for our talented employees. The Group assesses each employee at
the end of every year, on working performance, attitudes and other
key performance indicators. The appraisal results are used as one of
the considerations in the promotion, job title and renumerations.
Through this reviewing process, they can make corresponding
improvements and discuss their training needs with direct supervisors
so that their potentials are realised to the fullest.

The Group also subsidises employees for taking external training
courses which facilitates their personal and the Group's development.
The Company is committed to providing training opportunities for all
levels of employees.

The Group and management are dedicated to the continuous
development of our employees’ capabilities and we value the
personal and professional growth of our employees. By fostering a
culture of continuous learning, we seek to cultivate and retain our
best talents and maintain our competitive positioning in the market.
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Staff category Major training content

BT HEH FEHIRE

Factory Worker Craftsmanship and occupational safety and health

IHmIA TEMBEL2RER

General staff Specific training provided based on their roles

LTWMET EREBA R M B BEI

Middle management Specific training provided based on their roles

FEEREAE ERE R R ey B g3l

Directors and Senior Executives Corporate governance practices and legal and regulatory updates
EELERERASR BRERERMEREREHN

Labour standard

Labour rights are protected in accordance with local laws and
regulations. Hiring child labour and forced labour are strictly
prohibited in the Group. Identification documents of job applicants
are checked before the interview and signing of the employment
contract. During the Reporting Period, the Group is not aware of
any non-compliance of employment and labour practices that had a
significant impact on the Group.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The supply chains mainly cover two general categories: (i) office
supply chains; and (i) production supply chains. At the office level,
supply chains cover procurement for headquarter office and are
mainly stationeries (such as stationery, toner and paper). At the
production level, supply chains cover procurement of parts of
assembled parts of watch and packing materials.

By having stringent supply chain management, we ensure our
product quality and maintain our competitiveness in the market. The
Group also strive to ensure that the suppliers will provide sufficient
after-sales services, that being one of the perquisites of the business
relationship. Additionally, the Group will request the suppliers to
comply with the relevant legislation when supplying goods and
services to the Group. The Group conducts annual evaluations of its
suppliers to ensure that quality is maintained, and that prices paid for
goods and services provided remain competitive. Any suppliers that is
not up to standard will be subject to re-evaluation before making any
further business dealings.

To enhance the sustainability of the supply chains and minimise
carbon footprints, the Group tries to source the raw materials locally.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has 1,093 suppliers with a
majority of the suppliers of the Group located in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

Product responsibility

The Group is committed to providing high-quality stainless-steel
watches with an extensive range of designs and specifications (sport,
fashion, classic, diamond, etc). The Group obtained the ISO 9001
certification back in 1996. Production site of the Group is certified
with ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System in 2017. To ensure
on-going compliance with the requirements listed in ISO 9001,
evaluations on the performance are carried out at least once a year.

To ensure the provision of quality products to customers, a series
of stringent internal quality control procedures are performed
throughout the watch manufacturing process. Quality check on the
watch parts and components before assembly, final watch products
during productions and packaged final watch products before
shipments on sampling basis are performed. During the Reporting
Period, no cases of product recalls nor major complaints has been
received against our products due to health and safety issues.
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Privacy protection

The Group collects information from suppliers and customers for
different purposes and takes appropriate procedures to ensure that
the information collected are solely for lawful and relevant purposes.
The Group sets out data privacy requirements in the Company’s
policies, under which customers’ and suppliers’ data would be
used exclusively for matters relating to the Group’s operation only.
The Group strives to ensuring all collected data kept is free of
unauthorised or accidental access, processing, erasure or other use.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is not aware of any incidents
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group concerning health and safety, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products.

Anti-corruption

The Group follows the Company Law of the PRC, the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC and the Hong Kong Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance and other regulations, and distribute employee
handbooks and notices issued irregularly (such as on the eve of the
festival) to each employee to clearly explain the policy regarding
the acceptance of benefits between them and suppliers/partners.
Any unethical behaviours are strictly prohibited in the Group. A
whistleblowing policy is in place that mandates employees to report
any suspicious cases of unethical behaviours to the human resources
or the management orally or in writing, the Group would report the
cases to the authorities if the case found to be sufficiently supported
with evidences.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is not aware of any
noncompliance with laws and regulations having a significant impact
on the Group, on bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering,
nor of any legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Group or its employees.

COMMUNITY

Community investment

The Group has always strived to embed social responsibility in its
corporate culture by upholding the virtual of “taking from society
and giving back to society”. During the Reporting Period, the Group
has donated over HK$0.78 million to various charity organisations.
The beneficiary institutions included Po Leung Kuk, the Vocational
Training Council and Yan Oi Tong, etc. The Group will continue
to support a wide range of area, including education, medicals,
women’s rights by supporting other similar organisations.
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BE 30 EH A R A F
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HANVEY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hanvey
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 180,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BA®RE

Key Audit Matter
ERERBE

Trade receivables

EBESEKSE

Refer to Notes 3 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
gross trade receivables of approximately
HK$18,303,000 (2019: HK$45,068,000) and
allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL")
of approximately HK$2,113,000 (2019:
HK$401,000).

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group
to the customers ranged between 30 to 90 days
(2019: 30 to 90 days). Management performed
periodic assessment on the recoverability of the
trade receivables and the sufficiency of allowance
for expected credit losses based on information
including credit profile of different customers,
ageing of the trade receivables, historical
settlement records, subsequent settlement
status, expected timing and amount of realisation
of outstanding balances, and on-going trading
relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’
ability to repay the outstanding balances in order
to estimate the expected credit losses for the
impairment assessment.

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables under the
expected credit losses model involved the use
of significant management judgements and
estimates.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERERPNNEERREREE

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

Understanding and evaluating the key controls that the Group
has implemented to manage and monitor its credit risk;

Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2020 to the underlying financial
records and post year-end settlements to bank receipts;

Inquiring of management for the status of each of the material
trade receivables past due as at year end and corroborating
explanations from management with supporting evidence,
such as performing public search of credit profile of selected
customers, understanding on-going business relationship with
the customers based on trade records, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records of and other correspondence
with the customers; and

Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit loss
provisioning methodology, examining the key data inputs on
a sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the expected
credit losses.

We found that the management judgment and estimates used to
assess the recoverability of the trade receivables and determine the
impairment provision to be supportable by available evidence.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BAT®RE

Key Audit Matter
HAREXREBER

Revenue recognition

W 25 AT

Refer to Notes 3, 5 and 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring
the control of promised goods or services to
a customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for that goods or services.

We focused on this area due to the significant
volume of revenue transactions generated in
different locations.

F2HEAMEHRRMEI 5 K6
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERERPNNEERREREE

Our procedures in relation to assess the recognition of revenue
from manufacturing and trading business of watches included:

e Understanding and evaluating the management's controls
in respect of the Group’s sales transactions from contract
approval, recording of sales based on contract terms, through
reconciliations with cash receipts and customer’s records;

e Testing of revenue recorded covering different locations and
customers, using sampling techniques, by examining the
relevant customer orders, goods delivery notes and customer’s
receipt note. In addition, we sent confirmations to certain
customers to confirm their balances with the Group; and

e Testing the recognition of material sales transactions close to
the end of the reporting period to assess whether those sales
transactions were recorded in appropriate accounting period in
accordance with the Group’s revenue recognition policy.

We found that the amount and timing of the revenue recorded
were supportable by available evidence.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BA®RE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BAT®RE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BA®RE

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BAT®RE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Wong Sze Wai, Basilia.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia
Practising Certificate Number: PO5806

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GelEaRkREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & = 2020F 12 A31 H I FE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaE FET T
Revenue U 2= 6 139,335 198,050
Cost of sales 8HE A (106,192) (147,744)
Gross profit £ 33,143 50,306
Other income and other loss, net E A & E b EE
R 7 (2,142) (889)
Selling and distribution expenses HE MY HEFY (4,350) (5,337)
Administrative expenses THEX (47,838) (53,960)
Finance costs YR IDN 8 (4,999) (3,993)
Loss before tax MRBATEE 9 (26,186) (13,873)
Income tax expense Frigfif = 2 (22) (675)
Loss for the year attributable to: FE/GFE R EE :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ ¥ =N (26,208) (14,548)
Other comprehensive income Hih2EBA
ltem that may be reclassified HEensEfoEsEs
subsequently to profit or loss: IR -
Exchange differences arising on MEEERENZ5
translating 3,053 463
Other comprehensive income FREMEEBA -
for the year, net of tax MBRFLIE 3,053 463
Total comprehensive expense BEFEANEEBERARE
for the year attributable to
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE7 7 =N (23,155) (14,085)
Loss per share attributable to KATERET AEL
equity owners of the Company  SKE1E
Basic and diluted (HK$ cents) FAR R #5% (B 14 (2.62) (1.45)

MEAZEFEMBHRER ZAKAS -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

maE BB R

As at 31 December 2020 7220204 12 A31H

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RFE 5 68,986 34,025
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 16 2,939 4,305
Investment properties KEME 17 10,748 14,200
Financial asset at fair value through %A F{Ez AIB 5 HY
profit or loss TREE 22 440 440
Deferred tax assets RIEFRHIBEEE 18 5 5
83,118 52,975
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 5E 19 20,233 24,035
Trade receivables B 5 rW A 20 16,190 44,667
Other receivables, deposits and Hih g sIE - %
prepayments SEANEN 21 7,678 30,293
Financial asset at fair value through & A F{ET ABZEHN
profit or loss TREE 22 18,157 18,740
Tax recoverable A 4 [B] ¢ 18 466 -
Pledged bank deposits BIIFRITIER 23 46,619 6,718
Cash and bank balances Ba MBITES 23 17,854 22,190
127,197 146,643
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables Z S EMNHIER
FE R 1% 24 55,252 76,385
Other payables and accrued H Ath FE AT 5RIE &
expenses FERTE A 25 5,990 7,939
Contract liabilities EHBE 26 1,915 2,801
Bank overdrafts RITEX 27 2,485 1,929
Borrowings &% 27 51,888 42,289
Lease liabilities HEBE 28 1,274 2,231
Tax payable e IR 65 1,324
118,869 134,898
Net current assets RBEESE 8,328 11,745
Total assets less current liabilities EEZEBABERE 91,446 64,720

Annual Report 2020 43R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December

M®12A31H8
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it FET FAET
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Borrowings B 27 50,724 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 900 1,743
51,624 1,743
Net assets EEFE 39,822 62,977
Capital and reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital &7 29 10,000 10,000
Reserves 1 29,822 52,977
Total equity R 39,822 62,977

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2021 and signed on
its behalf by:

CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement
EEE
Executive Director

HITEF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

EEEH2021F3 529 B RIZET) 3
GRAMBRE  WARTIHHITEERA
FE

AU Corona Ching Mei
BEx
Executive Director

HITEF
MERZFEEMBHRER ZAMED -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & = 2020F 12 A31 H I FE

Retained
earnings/
Share Share Exchange Other (accumulated
Capital premium reserves reserve losses) Total
RERA /
B R %E EHfE Httfgfe  (R5ER) @t
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(W) (W)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1A1H 10,000 42 344 (515) 1,000 24,233 77,062
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (14,548) (14,548)
Other comprehensive income EREMZERA

for the year - - 463 - - 463
Total comprehensive income/ ER2ERN/(FR)

(expense) for the year ke - - 463 - (14,548) (14,085)
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 128318 )%

1 January 2020 202051418 10,000 42,344 (52) 1,000 9,685 62,977
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (26,208) (26,208)
Other comprehensive income EREpEZARA

for the year - - 3,053 - - 3,053
Total comprehensive income/ ER2ERN/(FR)

(expense) for the year k] - - 3,053 = (26,208) (23,155)
At 31 December 2020 R20205 128318 10,000 42,344 3,001 1,000 (16,523) 39,822

Notes: Bt -

(@)  The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.

(b)  The other reserve is according to the reorganisation and pursuant to the Sale
and Purchase Agreement of 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited dated 4 August
2017, Precise Time Global Limited acquired 1,000,000 ordinary shares of 3
Wells Watch Industries Limited (representing the entire issued share capital of
3 Wells Watch Industries Limited) from Million Easy Enterprises Limited, and
in consideration thereof, Beyond Blossom Investments Limited allotted and
issued one share, credited as fully paid, to the Company as directed by Million
Easy Enterprises Limited.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HMERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 & = 2020F 12 A31 H I FE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FEx T
Operating activities RETEE
Loss before tax BR AT ES 18 (26,186) (13,873)
Adjustments for: BLATIEB EITHRE
Interest income B U A 7 (154) (958)
Net foreign exchange bE 5B 1R (Weas)
loss/(gain), net HEE 7 220 (328)
Loss on disposal of right-of-use HEFCRAREEEE
assets, net FRE 7 240 -
Finance costs BhE AR 8 4,999 3,993
Net loss arising from change "EYMENTFEE
in fair value of investment FELENEEFE
properties 7 3,452 600
Net loss arising from disposal of HEEAFERTA
financial assets at fair value BENEeREE
through profit or loss EENEETE 7 835 1,829
Written-down of inventories FEMR 9 834 455
Allowance for expected credit loss 5 REWFIAER
on trade receivables TEHEEEERE 9 1,712 7
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {# FAEEEITE 6 1,864 2,286
Depreciation of property, Wz BERE&EE
plant and equipment e 15 5,149 4,505
Operating cash flows before EEESBHAIKE
movements in working capital BEeR (7,035) (1,484)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL () 2,968 (7,106)

Decrease/(increase) in trade Z 5 W IE R D
receivables (3 h0) 26,765 (1,200)
Decrease/(increase) in other HthEWFIE e &

receivables, deposits and BARORD)

prepayments N 2,415 (23,302)
(Decrease)/increase in trade E S EMRIERENE

and bills payables BRIG O D) /1N (21,133) 7,424
Decrease in contract liabilities BB ERD (886) (986)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables  H fth /&~ FUIE K fE =1

and accrued expenses R i) /180 (1,949) 2,026
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Income tax paid

Income tax refunded

Net cash used in operating
activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Increase in deposit for life insurance

(Increase)/decrease in pledged
bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

Financing activities
Repayment of lease liabilities
Leases interest paid
Borrowings interest paid
Overdraft interest paid
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

REEBRE (FFA)
BE

B ATEHR

FTS TR R

REEFHHMARSFE

REES
BEYE BELRE

BERAFEFARRE
MEREE

HERXFESABR
ME B E EMSHKIA

AR % 01
B ERRITIR
(EM) /D
BIFIE

REEE (A FiE
REFHE

BMEEE

EBEHERE
ENEERNE
B HEFFE
EEHE
&SR 1S 3R

EEER

MEEEFE (FTA)
REFH

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2020
2020 £
HK$'000
FExT

1,145
(2,881)
1,134

(602)

(17,551)

(1,896)

2,076
(432)

(39,901)
154

(57,550)

(2,533)
(150)
(4,814)
(35)
172,142
(112,386)

52,224

2019
20194
HK$'000
FHET

(24,628)
(619)

(25,247)

(5,137)

(7,119)

7,894

14,983
634

11,255

(2,753)
(221)
(3,741)
(31)
159,297
(159,564)

(7,013)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁiﬁéﬁ

Year ended 31 December
HZ12B31BLLEE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaE FTET FHT
Net decrease in cash and cash REeERBESEEYRD
equivalents HEE (5,928) (21,005)
Cash and cash equivalents atthe FHHRERESEEY
beginning of the year 20,261 40,333
Effect of foreign exchange rate SN [ = F B R B
changes 1,036 933
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FEXKIRE KB L HEY
of the year 15,369 20,261
Analysis of balances of cashand HE&RBELEEYEE
cash equivalents pal i
Cash and bank balances W NLRITHERR 23 17,854 22,190
Bank overdrafts HRITHEZ 27 (2,485) (1,929)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated 4R AR &R ER Z W
in the consolidated statement of ReRBLFEY
cash flows 23 15,369 20,261
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12
June 2017 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The registered office of the
Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at Unit 3, 5 and 6,
15th Floor, Tower One, Ever Gain Plaza, No. 88 Container Port
Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong. Its ultimate
holding company and immediate holding company are Million
Easy Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in design and development,
manufacturing and distribution of watch products on original
design manufacturing (“ODM") basis for watch manufacturers,
brand owners and watch importers across the global.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 12 July 2018 (the “Listing Date").

The consolidated financial statement is presented in (“HK$" or
“HKD") which is also the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$'000), except where otherwise indicated.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to Conceptual Framework in HKFRSs and the
following amendments to HKFRS issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountant (“HKICPA") for the first
time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January
2020:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

- Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 - Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRSs and the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performances for the current and
prior years and on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FERAHIREBITIEBHK
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HRELER ((BEBRBREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) A1) ()

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not B M8 AR {E 8 R A M F R R R (&
yet effective RAIEBMBREEL

The Group has not early applied the following new and REBHARREFTEAUTEREMER
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet RERKFE] RIS E] BB M mE

effective: AR
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related EEMKRSENE TR RBRAOLERET
Amendments’
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions’ EEORRSENE16%  COVID-19HEHHES
CHES B3
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework? BN BREENE3R HaERED?
HES
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2° EEURREENER . FIREENE-
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, REERENY AR F2RES
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 HBRERUETS AA
HEREENEIR LA
BmEERE 165
HES
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an EEUKREENE0HR KREEHEBEANF
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture? BESHERE 8T KABEE BN
BEMERLA®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non- BRI EANE 1R (BTN BEENEARDN
current and related amendments to Hong ERBUREE
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)’ 2EE55 (2020
F)zEBET
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds BB ERE 165 nE- BERRE-
before Intended Use? (1BRTK) BEBRAIZAE
A
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling BEGHERIETR BEEN-BT—1H
a Contract? (BFTA) B2 AR
Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — BEMBREEN(BIAR) FRMBREES
20202 20185 F2020F
ZEEME?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

! R2023F 1 A1 B2 BABHEER

AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. 2 20221 A1 HSZ BRBNFEER
FIAERL »

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 3 REFE BHs 2 B FRBEFE BB &

determined. e

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. 4 7202046 A1 Bz ERHBEEE R
AR

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. s 20211 A1 HSZ BRBFEER

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories
or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Significant accounting policies

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group which qualifies
as business combination, except for those acquisitions which
qualify as a common control combination and are therefore
accounted for using the merger accounting.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Under the purchase method of accounting, subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange and,
all acquisition-related costs are expensed. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statements
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the period are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transaction between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. A contract asset and a contract liability
relating to a contract are accounted for an presented on a net
basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Revenue from sales of watches

Revenue from sales of watches are recognised when control of
goods has transferred, being the time when the products are
delivered to customers and title is passed.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

The items of property, plant and equipment, after taking into
account the residual values, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum.

20% or over the
lease terms, if shorter

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery 10-20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Motor Vehicle 20%

Leasehold building over the lease term
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment Losses on Non-Financial Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When allocating an impairment loss to individual assets within a
CGU, the carrying amount of an individual asset should not be
reduced below the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable), and zero. If
this results in an amount being allocated to an asset which is
less than its pro rata share of the impairment loss, the excess is
allocated to the remaining assets within the CGU on a pro rata
basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment Losses on Non-Financial Assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or the CGU) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. An investment property is
derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are recognised when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivable arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")), are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets (Continued)
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

e oninitial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other income and other
loss, net” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposit and bank balances).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets without significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
period with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability- weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group take into consideration the
following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade and
other receivable) and amounts due from customers are
each assessed as a separate group. Loans to related parties
are assessed for ECL on an individual basis);

. Past-due status;
e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
e  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bills
payables, lease liabilities, bank overdrafts and borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

As a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the financial statements would not
differ materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of property that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement
date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate

the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

As a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at commencement date at amounts equal to
net investments in the leases, measured using the interest rate
implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct costs (other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included
in the initial measurement of the net investments in the leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the investment properties
are presented as “other income and other loss, net”.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

The Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue From Contracts with
Customers to allocate consideration in a contract to lease and
non-lease components. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as
lease modifications, including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment Transactions
Share options granted to directors, employees and others
providing similar services rendered by employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share option
reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to retained earnings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profit against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale, except for freehold land, which is always
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition
of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and
lease modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not
re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign Currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserves (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income and other loss, net”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement Benefits Costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
the state-managed retirement benefit schemes, which are
defined contribution schemes, are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC”), the PRC based employees
of the Group participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC under which the
Group and the employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage of the
employees’ salaries, subject to certain ceiling. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired PRC based
employees payable under the plans described above. Other than
the monthly contributions, the Group has no further obligation
for the payment of retirement and other postretirement benefits
of its employees. The assets of these plans are held separately
from the subsidiary in an independent fund managed by the
PRC government.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is
the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material). When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the consolidated financial statements provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Related Party Transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(@) has control or joint control over the Group;
(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

() is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related Party Transactions (Continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(a)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiaries is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group which the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employees are also related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);

a person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the equity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources, or obligations between
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price is

charged.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group's
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables with significant balances and credit-impaired
are assessed for ECL individually. The provision of ECL is sensitive
to changes in estimates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for an asset at the end of each reporting period. The
asset is tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, an estimation of the value in use
of the cash generating units to which the asset is allocated will
be required. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. A
change in the estimated future cash flows and/or the discount
rate applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. The
determination of the fair value involves certain assumptions of
market conditions which are set out in Note 17.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions, including the
potential risk of the market violation, would result in changes
in the fair values of the Group’s investment properties and
the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the
Group’s investment properties is HK$10,748,000 (2019:
HK$14,200,000).

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value at the end of the reporting period. The cost of inventories
is computed using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value is determined on the basis of the estimated selling
price less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. In addition, the management performs an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the end of the reporting
period and assess the need for write-down of inventories.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision makers
("CODMs") for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. The Group currently operates
in the manufacturing and trading business of watches. A single
management team reports to the CODMs who comprehensively
manages the entire business. The segmentations are based
on the information about the operation of the Group that
management uses to make decisions and regularly reviewed by
the CODMs of the purpose of allocating resources to segments
and assessing their performance. For the years ended and 31
December 2020 and 2019, the Group only engaged operating
segment in (“ODM") Original Design Manufacturer.

No segment result, assets and liabilities are presented as they
were not regularly provided to the CODMs of the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

Geographical information

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from customers located
in the Indonesia, Hong Kong, Brazil, India, Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, Australia, United Arab Emirates (“UAE") and Turkey.
The Group's revenue by the geographical location of the
customers, determined based on the location to which the
Group bills the customers, is detailed below:

7 #hE

MEZLEARE ([TEEERE
) 2EFHRMEERDER D HRIRFT
HEOBERTERRATRMiREE R
SRS TELE o ANEEE AL S FHRE
ERBEEEK B EBREEKMZE
AEEEEERNEBLERKTERE
oo DTN EREIRE R AERRE
FEEEEARETHERUNTRE
BT EDEARFHEERBEZAEE L
BAER - NEZE20204F & 20194F 12
A31H A&EBEELERETEE
([ODM ) #& & 755 -

HREELERRERETRRHEE
BMOMEENRBENERAEERD
Fo RRBRHE W |2 WMy BER -
BERAE-

WwIEER
AEENRZEBREHE FE -
B - EE - DA ER RN
P AR S RE ((FMBE ) Mt E
HHEP - AREREFPHIEMLE (R
BASEZHBAENEPHHET)
oSBT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019

2020 & 20194

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Indonesia HIE 62,695 84,518
Hong Kong BB 17,644 21,563
Brazil ki 13,153 17,888
India ENfE 12,014 23,413
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia DEMAATE 8,855 10,832
Australia BN 4,003 8,973
UAE fon] B 2 2,501 3,729
Turkey THH 1,974 2,305
Others (Note) H A (4752) 16,496 24,829
139,335 198,050

Note: Other geographical locations are mainly located in Germany, Thailand,
United Kingdom, Switzerland, Bangladesh and Colombia.

Biat - EAh IR & F B R ER - FE -
S e N | Sl ]
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)
The Group's business activities are conducted predominantly in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Information about the Group’s non-
current assets* by the geographical location of the assets is
detailed below:

7 BB (@)

IR E R ()
AEEIERESRTEMRLT -
EMAKEIREE RN EE SN
RBAEMERFENT

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Hong Kong B 40,741 45,943
PRC s 43,506 6,587
84,247 52,530

* Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets and financial asset at
FVTPL.

Revenue from major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

* FRPEETEBREEHEEEREA
FEFABRENEREE -

REFEFFHWE
HEFEAEEBIKRZE10% A L/
ERWEAT

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Customer A Z2EA 62,695 91,736
Customer B ZFB —* 23,413

* The customer contributed less than 10% of the total revenue of the Group.
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6. REVENUE

iy 38

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31HLLEE

2020 2019

2020 & 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FAT

Finished watches F K 114,557 146,801
SKD kits REAEEN 23,537 48,081
Watch parts FEREH 1,241 3,168
Revenue recognised at a point in time B T B T SR A Uk 2 139,335 198,050

All revenue contracts are for period of one year or less, as
permitted by practical expedient under HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contract is not disclosed.

EEER GRS RNBISHESS
KR SR BT R A B R
T A YA %A A — 4 o — 4 A
M SEEZERERANNZHE
RTHE -
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7. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSS, NET

HibWAREEE - F58

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHT

Interest income FEHA 154 958

Rental income HEWA 312 246

Exchange (loss)/gain, net EH (EE), RS FE (220) 328

Government grants (Note) AT F A (A7 at) 1,973 -

Sundry income FEIEIA 166 8
Loss on disposal of right-of-use HEFRAREEERBRTHE

assets, net (240) -

Net loss arising from change in fair KEMERTEBEHEED

value of investment properties B8 F 5 (3,452) (600)
Net loss arising from disposal HERAFETABRED

of financial assets at FVTPL PRMEEEENEEFEE (835) (1,829)

(2,142) (889)

Note: During the current year, the Group recognised government grant of
approximately HK$984,000 in respect of COVID-19 related subsidies
which is related to Employment Support Scheme provided by the
Hong Kong government and HK$989,000 which is related to PRC
government in respect of COVID-19 related subsidies.

8. FINANCE COSTS

Bta - RAFE - AREEBLCOVID-19 FE
Bf 58 BT 18 Bh 49984,00078 7T - H
HEBBNRENREETZ BB
H2rR BB L COVID-19 MO f BE B AN

989,000/ 7T °

R 2N

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETT

Interest on: AR IBH A S
Borrowings &% 4,814 3,741
Lease liabilities HEAE 150 221
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 35 31
4,999 3,993
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9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. BR¥ATEIR
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging: AEERBRAIEEE R TY)EIE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31HLLEE

2020 2019

2020 FF 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Directors’ emoluments (Note 10) FEMNE (Kt 10) 7,282 8,419
Staff costs (excluded directors’ BEIXA(TBREESIE)

emoluments) 10,806 13,347
Bonus B4 661 1,476
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R /K48 F 51 3 £ 7% 1,174 1,450
Total staff costs BT A4 % 12,641 16,273

19,923 24,692
Auditors’ remuneration =B AT B & 860 860
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BERZETE

equipment (Note 15) (Hrat 15) 5,149 4,505
Write-down of inventories (Note) FEME (A 834 455
Cost of inventories recognised as R AERIHFERR

expenses 95,432 124,982
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE (Hit16)

(Note 16) 1,864 2,286
Commission paid B e 1,344 1,307
Expenses relating to short-term leases HEHHEEENAX 101 62
Allowance for ECL on trade receivables B 5 EWZIBHEHREE

BB E 1,712 7
Note: Written-down of inventories were included in cost of sales. HeE - BEMRG ASEERA -
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10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 10. EEM <
Pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and Section 383 of the Hong RHE GEM £ R A R EE R BHEGI S
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Companies (Disclosure 3BBBREAF (HEEZFEER) R
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation Bl (£622GE)  EFZHBEFEEZT
(Cap. 622G), the aggregate amounts, the directors received BZENBARMESRM MRS
remuneration from the subsidiaries now comprising the Group (5] 3R 05 R TN BT /8 R URER MO 3 BN 48 R
for their appointment as directors of these subsidiaries. W e

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Directors’ fees EEEE 636 675
Salaries and other benefits TEREMET 5,033 5,890
Discretionary bonus IS TEAL 1,565 1,800
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R K78 F 51 2 5% 48 54
7,282 8,419
The remuneration of each of these directors as recorded in the MBRRGREVBHRRPREENZE
consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries is set out EEZENFHMNHETIWOT
below:
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020512A31BLLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other Discretionary scheme
fee benefits bonus  contributions Total
THE BB )
BEEne Hitt g F BERA B R #@ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET FTEx TER TER
Executive directors: HOEE:
Mr. Cheuk B - 3,593 1,165 18 4,776
Mrs. Cheuk ERK - 1,077 400 18 1,495
Ms. Heide Cheuk =Eo ke e
(Note () (Kt (@) - 363 - 12 375
Independent non- BUERTES !
executive directors:
Mr. Yu Sau Ning REELLE  MH
Homer M.H. 159 - - - 159
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng HES LA 159 - - - 159
Ms. Yee Wai Fong REFRT
Wendy 159 - - - 159
Mr. Liu Ngai Wing PR E
(Note (b)) (W) 159 - - - 159
636 5,033 1,565 48 7,282
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

10. EEM € @)

Year ended 31 December 2019
BZE2019FN2A3HLEE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other  Discretionary scheme
fee benefits bonus  contributions Total
TEK RAKEA
EETEn HAfgH B4 FREIER a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FTAT FAT FHL FHL
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Cheuk =S - 4,090 1,550 18 5,658
Mrs. Cheuk AKX - 1,200 100 18 1,318
Ms. Heide Cheuk Sl +
(Note () (Wi () - 600 150 18 768
Independent non- BUFRTES !
executive directors:
Mr. Yu Sau Ning REELLE MH
Homer M.H. 180 - - - 180
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng HEBLE 180 - - - 180
Ms. Yee Wai Fong REFRT
Wendy 180 - - - 180
Mr. Liu Ngai Wing BRELE
(Note (b)) (/Wzi:f(b)) 135 - _ _ 135
675 5,890 1,800 54 8,419
Notes: Biat -

(@  Ms. Heide Cheuk has been resigned as executive director of the
Company on 1 September 2020.

(b)  Mr. Liu Ngai Wing has been appointed as independent non-executive

director of the company on 1 April 2019.

During the reporting period, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
Directors did not waive or agree to waive any emoluments
during the reporting period.

(@) FEELLTERN20209F9 81 HE(ER
NAHITESE -

(b) BEREEECN2019F481BEZT
BARNARBMIERITES -

BEMA - AEERERARRES
SASTEB - E RS EIMAKRIA
REEE 2 52E) > RIFRBEBMAE -
BEHRN EFVEREXRBENRE
T E -
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11. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the years

ended 31 December 2020 included two (2019: three) directors
and details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 10 above.
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. Details
of the remuneration of the remaining three (2019: two) highest
paid employees who are not directors are as follows:

MNEEMESREREEENS

HZE2020F12A31BILFE A&
ErMhfiseHiEE 8E24 (2019
F3R)EE  FENHFHFEER
EXMFE10- TR AEBETEAT
B A T HERB S 1E AR
BAIAS AL EBE A EE S EA
KEBAIAFHE -2 T34 (20195 ¢
2B mmEHER (WIHEES) EE
BT

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019

2020 & 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries, allowance and benefit in kind ~ T& - 28 R EWEH 1,698 1,267
Bonuses TE4T 292 271
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R R1& F| 51 &l 7% 54 36
2,044 1,574

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose emoluments fell within the
following bands is as follows:

FMBER A THENRSHMER (XL
FARRBESE) ABIAT

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2020 2019

2020 20194

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A N

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 3 2

Annual Report 2020 43R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FTSHHAX

126

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

The Group is subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at a rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

One of the subsidiaries of the Company is subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 8.25% for the first HK$2 million
of estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits above HK$2 million. Other subsidiaries of the
Company are subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of
16.5% for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

REFEFENABHERARES ([
BHEERES ] R RAEM - KAE
BHEARRERENABHEBRES
BNEREHR -

HZE2020F12 831 HILFE K&
E/E1%216.5% (20194 : 16.5%) 2 %t
KRB BREGH -

M2018%F3 A21 B BB LS RS
2017 F/#E (ERT) (B7RIEHIER
(MEBIER]) - 3| AMARSIFIEH
1EHIEZR2018F3 A28 HEEKX A
FAETHRBAAEER - RIEMEH
FIEH AEREEERE2HEET
i M 32 8.25% MR R UK TR TE - T
B2 E 8B TR 512 16.5% B
FRERBURTRIE - REFE ARSI RS H
MEBEEERNBEER—1%165%
Bw -

AAREP—ZRMBAREARE2EH
BB T AT IER TR 7112 8.25% BY
HREMMEBFNEH  WEARBB2
BEBIIHEFERTEFIEZ16.5%
BT R BHRE - B 2= 2020 K% 20194 12
A31AIEFE  ARRIEMITE AR
AR 16.5% W RGN E BTG -
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FREHRAX @)
The subsidiary of the Group established in the PRC is generally RMEEE - RNEBE BN E QR
subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) on its taxable BEAR BRI ARG E 25%
income at an income tax rate of 25% for both years. PR ZERST ([¥MEH)) -

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A831BLLEE

2020 2019
2020 FF 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Tax charge comprises: IEmMZ BT
Current tax BVERRR 18
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BABFEH - 537
—PRC EIT —HEPEMRER - 4
— Under-provision in prior years —ERREERBTR 22 -
22 541
Deferred tax EETIE - 134
22 675
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss AN 7] R K EBD BT B A =) FTAE A
before tax at the statutory rate for jurisdiction in which the AR R AT RS AN F T
Company’s and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to BRAMNEHRAYBIRERHERTE
the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows: BBIER S HERNT
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
Loss before tax BRI ES 1R (26,186) (13,873)
Tax at the applicable income tax rates  ¥Z@E A TSR R E A8 (4,233) (2,258)
Tax effect of non-taxable incomes DA AT G2 (880) (205)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AN A] 3R 5 X MO FR A5 52 &2 3,508 1,196
Under provision in previous years ERIFERETTE (22) -
Tax loss not recognised RERH TS BB 1,605 726
Other HAh = (134)
(22) (675)
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13. DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period (2019: HK$Nil).

14. LOSS PER SHARE
Basic loss per share are calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

13.

14.

S

R 20204 - BEEM AR A E R E
TS EIRR S  BREHREIE
BRI ALE (20194 « B L) °

BREE
SREARIRIRAA TG AR
18 L F B BT R BRSBTS
Bt -

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT T
Loss BB
Loss attributable to owners of the RAFRIHE NEIHEBE
Company (26,208) (14,548)
Number of shares (thousands) BRHEE (LTFEH)
Weighted average number of ordinary st E&BREA KRB FEELN
shares for calculating basic and diluted 3@ B inE F 15 &
loss per share 1,000,000 1,000,000

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, diluted
loss per share are the same as the basic loss per share as the
Company did not have any potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

HZE2020FE K% 2019F12 A31 BIEE
& R ARRIEZE2020F % 2019F
12 A3 BIEFETEBEEELRR
BAITIESN - MRS HIE R
KEEAER °
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ BEERRKRE

Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor Leasehold
improvement ~ machinery  equipment vehicles building Total
G %E
HEXE BERES K& RE HEEF @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TEx TEx TEx
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 R201951R1H 16,001 6,219 7,m 2,8%4 30,110 62,335
Additions AE 2,689 2,165 283 - - 5137
Exchange realignment [ (78) (170) (53) 9) - (310)
Transfer from right-of-use assets ~ BB EFEELEE - - - 776 - 776
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12 A31H
and 1 January 2020 R200%51A18 18,612 8,214 7,341 3,661 30,110 67,938
Additions (Motes REMWiE) 4173 6 250 - nm 31,751
Written-off i i - - (1,785) - - (1,785)
Exchange realignment R A% 500 542 169 26 1,821 3,064
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12 A31H 23,885 8,762 5975 3,687 64,659 106,968
Accumulated depreciation i E
At 1 January 2019 H201951 R 18 12,723 3,900 5029 2,152 5493 29,302
Charge for the year FRF M 2,073 527 818 264 823 4,505
Exchange realignment ERHER (49) (91) (36) () - (179)
Transfer from right-of-use assets ~ BEEERELEE - - - 285 - 285
At 31 December 2019 R2019512 4318
and 1 January 2020 R200%1A18 14,747 4336 581 2,698 6,321 33913
Charge for the year EMz 1,582 753 734 354 1,726 5,149
Written-off s - - (1,785) - - (1,785)
Exchange realignment ERER 216 299 126 14 50 705
At 31 December 2020 R2020512A318 16,545 5,388 4,886 3,066 8,097 37,982
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2020 R2020612 4318 7,340 3374 1,089 621 56,562 68,986
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12 A31H 3,865 3818 1,530 963 23,789 34,025
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% - RERRE@®

(Continued)

Note: Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases entered, Miet - ZAREBERBRILMIEE - #5
business combination, lease modification, reassessment/exercise of A0t HEEN  EFTE/ THEE
extension/termination options, payments for leasehold land, excluding TR/ RIEHE - INEETHEOER
those classified as investment properties. BEE ETRENEAIRENES -

All the Group’s leasehold building are situated in PRC and Hong REEPEEEBFUNPEREE -

Kong.

The Group has pledged property, plant and equipment with #H Z=2020412A318K20194F

a carrying amount of approximately HK$22,613,000 and 12A318 AEEBEEE LD

HK$23,422,000 as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 22,613,000 7T} 23,422,0007% 7T &9

2019, respectively, to secure general banking facilities granted BEEME  BELEREHDEBERER

to the Group as disclosed in Note 32. REBEBR —RRITHENER R

FisE324%5R) °
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EREEE
Motor Office Leasehold
Vehicles equipment Buildirg Total
ik BAERE -t | @5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR THL THT TR
Cost B
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H 2,923 515 1,424 4,862
Additions NE 756 - 1,740 2,496
Exchange realignment JE 5 - - (30) (30)
Transfer to property, plant and BREENE  BER
equipment (776) - - (776)
At 31 December 2019 2019612 A318
and 1 January 2020 &2020¢ A1H 2,903 515 3,134 6,552
Additions (Note) NE ( /5/7‘,?1’) 768 45 - 813
Exchange realignment ER - - 13 13
Lease termination ZM:EE - (515) (1,407) (1,922)
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 3,671 45 1,740 5,456
Accumulated depreciation 2itRE
At 1 January 2019 201951 A1 R 265 - - 265
Charge for the year FRXH 545 138 1,603 2,286
Exchange realignment JE 5 2 \ - - (19) (19)
Transfer to property, plant and BREENE  BEREE
equipment (285) - - (285)
At 31 December 2019 R2019% 12 4318
and 1 January 2020 %2020 1518 525 138 1,584 2,247
Charge for the year FRXL 593 62 1,209 1,864
Exchange realignment I 5,50 % - - 8 8
Lease termination BIEHEE - (195) (1,407) (1,602)
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 1,118 5 1,39 2,517
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2020 ®2020F12A31H 2,553 40 346 2,939
At 31 December 2019 ®2019F12A31H 2,378 377 1,550 4,305
Note: Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases entered. B - ZFRBEREFLHHMEENER
EEE -

RWEFE  AEESEEMHERS
RMAERERZWAE - HESYD
WEEFHR_E2RF B M
BELER MR - HB TR ER E%E
R X BETREGR SR BT
T H R 5 T AT U HARR A R SR B -
AEBEAEHNTERE  UET A
TTARKMERR -

For both years, the Group leases various office equipment and
motor vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 2 to 5 years, but may have extension
and termination options as described below. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REYW =
As at 31 December
R12A318
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Fair value AEE
Balance at beginning of year FUEERR 14,200 14,800
Net loss arising from change in fair value & #WE N FEEZH
of investment properties EENEERFE (WiTE7)
(Note 7) (3.452) (600)
Balance at end of year FRERR 10,748 14,200
The Group leases out offices under operating leases with rentals AEBRBECEHENAMNEERA
payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period of TMAE - HENBEVAEDRAER
2 years (2019: 2 years), with unilateral rights to extend the lease FQ019%F : M4) - WhHHEBFRER -
beyond initial period held by lessees only. AIEVIE AR E RAAH - M B &
MAFE -
The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of AEETE R AHHEE LR EERINE
the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the Bk BAMEHEYUEEEES
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease BN EKEE HEAOIES
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s FIAEEERRE AR ARERLGE
option to purchase the property at the end of lease term. RESEEMERRER -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BREWZE (&)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as
at 31 December 2019 and 2020 at HK$14,200,000 and
HK$10,748,000, respectively has been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by Assets
Appraisal Limited for Hong Kong properties, independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group who
have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

At each of financial year end, the management of the Group will
(i) verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;
(i) assess property valuation movements when compared to
prior year valuation report; and (iii) holds discussion with the
independent valuer.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfer
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during the
year ended 31 December 2019 and 2020.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The fair values of certain investment properties have been
adjusted to exclude prepaid or accrued operating lease income
to avoid double counting.
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AEBENREMER2019F &
200F 12 A31HW A FED Bl A
14,200,000% 7T . 10,748,0007% 7T °
DEREETEBERAER RN EHE
MEHREEEMEETHGEERS
BEFEBEBAERARAEAEEY
EEBNBLSEREEMGERM %
BEMEE RPN T AEE A
HUMEETHENLER -

REVRFEFER  AEEEERE
BOZEBLAERSHAEIESR
ABE () HEERBEFEHERS
g2 MEMEES - K (i) BB
(I E

ARBEMBEAEREESRBE N
FHRERE (YA RTESRHA
RAHER -

HZE2019F % 2020F 12 A31 HIEF
EREET AL mEE -

B ZEMENNTER  ZEWE
MEAMZREREAEBATAE -

ETREPENATEEDHE B
REMSEEHERRERA LR
R E M -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BREWZE (&)

134

The fair value was determined based on direct comparison
method assuming sale of the property interest in its existing
state and making references to comparable market observable
transactions of similar properties in similar locations and
conditions as available in the relevant market. Those comparable
properties are analysed and carefully weighed against all
respective advantages and disadvantages of each property in
order to arrive at a fair comparison of value.

The Group’s investment properties with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$14,200,000 and HK$10,748,000 as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2020, was pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in
Note 27.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

RFEDREZLBOERETE @ BIRKR
MERDERANTHELL2ER
HHRE T 5 Al S AR UM B AR
EVAR I R H) F] & LB 5 H) A B
Ry CHZEFABLBMERETY
o TERERGRMESEZMBE
Bh N BRES  AEB A FELE -

HZE2019%12 A31H &20204F 12
A318 - ERE#ESD R4 14,200,000
# 7T 5210,748,000 8 T IR B ER
EIRERARSEEE —RIRITREDN
BR(PKIFE27HEE) »

DRFEER
TRIAREEREM RO R FER

EER:

Fair value measurement using
significant unobservable inputs

(Level 3)
KAERTAEEHABEN
NFEFE (FE3R)
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Recurring fair value measurement for: UTEENEEML R FEGTE
— Industrial properties located in —RBEANLEME

Hong Kong 10,748 14,200

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2019 and 2020 are estimated by using significant
unobservable inputs and the fair value measurement is
categorised under Level 3.

MR2019F & 202012 A31 8 » K&
BIREMENDNFEDIFEBERTA
R ABIREITHE - A ERE
NEBEIH -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWE @)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) APEZEH(E)
For investment properties categories into Level 3 of the fair value RS EAATEBREIRHIZE
hierarchy, the following information is relevant: M T AR AEEEE
Class of Fair value
property hierarchy Valuation technique  Significant unobservable input(s) Sensitivity
WEER AVEER  f#EEE EXTUHRERAYE Rt
Properties located in Level 3 Direct comparison Compare properties of similar size, A slight increase in the
Hong Kong method character and location are analysed market price would result in a
and carefully weighted against all significant increase in fair value,
the respective advantages of each and vice versa.

property in order to arrive at a fair
comparison of capital values. Market
unit value ranged from HK$6,300 to
HK$11,000 per square metre (2019:
ranged from HK$8,000 to HK$13,200
per square metre), taking into account
the differences in location, and
individual factor, such as frontage,
location and size, between the
comparables and the property.

IR EBNME F34 BEELEE FEREE FERMSE TELR HEREENREERATE
MEELHN TREEEEWER  BEEN R2HA-
w2 (HREE  NERAFELREE
ZHB TR ELEENTETAK
6,300/ 722 11,0007 7T (20194
NTEFHK8,0005TE 13,2007
) BEBNENER - REME
R WA B RMERYE 2 RN
M A ERERE-
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18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 18. EEHIREE

Tax losses
HEEE
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2019 M20191 A1 R 139
Charge to profit or loss during the year (Note 12) FR{EBzEM% (HiF12) (134)

At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 and M2019F 12 A31H 2020F1 51K
31 December 2020 202012 A31H 5

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$7,481,000 (2019: HK$2,083,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses to the extent of HK$Nil (2019:
HK$30,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining unused tax losses of HK$7,481,000
(2019: HK$2,053,000) due to the unpredictability of the future
profit streams. Unused tax losses HK$3,105,000 was arised
from Hong Kong Company, which may be carried forward
indefinitely; while unused tax losses HK$4,376,000 was arised
from PRC, which may be carried forward by 5 years.

202012 A31H KREEHKRE
FA B i 7% 85 18 7,481,000 7T (2019
4 :2,083,00087L) - A AR AR
i e Pl HMBEBERTET
(20194F : 30,0007 T) B MR AIEIL
TRIEEE  H#7,481,000 87T (2019
£ : 2,053,000 70) K& AT EE
B ARER  BAAKRK M #ATE
Al e 3,105,000 7% 7T /) K 18 FA Bl 75 &S
BREBERG - AIREERAE M
4,376,000 BT R ERBBBERE
FE ATAAE R o
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19. INVENTORIES

19. 78

As at 31 December

MR12A31H8
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw material B 7,568 11,238
Work in progress E& 8,814 7,440
Finished goods BIRY G 3,851 5,357
20,233 24,035

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. E 5 R KIE
As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables 2 5 rEWEIE 18,303 45,068
Less: allowance for ECL B B EEEERE (2,113) (401)
16,190 44,667
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. E 5 B WK IE ()
The aged analysis (based on invoice date) of the Group’s trade TEERESRERARRNE S EIRK
receivables (after allowance for ECL) as at the end of each of H (KR TEHREEREEREER) RN %
reporting period is as follows: SHENERRSITAT -
As at 31 December
M®12A31H8
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
0 to 30 days 0%Z30H 3,834 20,178
31 to 60 days 312 60H 5,256 10,879
61 to 90 days 612 90H 1,853 1,716
Over 90 days #190 H 5,247 11,894
16,190 44,667
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HKD ETT 13,765 28,207
usD e 2,268 16,165
RMB AR 157 295
16,190 44,667
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. E 5 EWRIE (&)

The Group has policy of allowing its trade customers with credit
period normally ranging 30 to 90 days or in accordance with
agreed terms of the contracts with customers. However, for
certain customers with long-established relationship and good
repayment records, a long credit period may be granted more
than 90 days.

The Group has a policy for allowance for ECL which is
based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis
of accounts and on management’s judgement including
the creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer as well as the forward-looking information.

Movement in the allowance for ECL on trade receivables is as
follow:

AEEFTRRAFRTHEESER
— BN F30E0HHEE KB E
HEFHTENEOKEIEHEER -
R BRETFTAERBABERER
RERTNER  AEESEREE
BOOHMERREER-

AEBEREEHEEBHEBEBER
THAR IR BR SR A] U5 [l A B2 51 K iR
RAOMARERENHE  BEEE
F 8= A Kol YR Bl R 8% K B R 1R
AL

B S EWFBNBEEEE BB EE
;T

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2020 2019
2020 £F 20194
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Balance at beginning of year FUREER 401 394
Allowance for expected credit loss BEEEEERE 1,712 7
Balance at end of year FRER 2,113 401

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$12,167,000 and HK$14,078,000 as at 31 December 2020
and 2019, respectively which were past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as the Group considered such balances could be
recovered based on historical experience. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out
in Note 38.
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M2020F & 20194F 12 A31 8 K&
EME ZEGERIERmMEED 5
#312,167,000% 7T & 14,078,000 % 7T
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21. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

21. HEWRIE - e RFEHF

=h
TA

As at 31 December

M®12A31H8
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Other receivables H fth fE Y ZR A 20 1,061
Deposits e 920 714
Prepayments SCENE 6,738 28,518
7,678 30,293

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

22. BAFEFABRRNERME
E=

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Non-current asset EREEE
Unlisted club debentures A EMAELEILES 440 440
Current assets MBNEE
Held-for-trading securities FIEEERS 377 1,392
Key management personnel life insurance =B EIE A B ASBRE
policies (Note) (H13E) 17,780 17,348
18,157 18,740
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2. BAFEFAEZENEHE
-3€ )

Bt - 2013498198 » AR AIMMEA

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS/OTHER (Continued)

Note: On 19 September 2013, a subsidiary of the Company has entered

into a life insurance policies (the “Policies”) to insure directors of
the Company, Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk. Under the policies, the
beneficiary and policy holder is a subsidiary of the Company and
the total insured sum is USD5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$38,750,000). The Group is required to pay an upfront deposit of
USD1,936,757 (equivalent to approximately HK$15,010,000). The
Group can terminate the Policies at any time and receive cash back
based on the cash value of the Policies at the date of withdrawal,
which is determined by the upfront payments plus accumulated
interest earned and minus the accumulated insurance charge and
policy expense charge. The Group receives an interest at interest rates
guaranteed by the insurer. The fair value is based on redemption value
quoted by the insurance company.

The entire amount of the rights under life insurance policies is
denominated in United States Dollar.

The Group has pledged the policies as at 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019 to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group as disclosed in Note 32.
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23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED 23. & KRBT UREIKHH

142

BANK DEPOSITS

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the reporting period as shown in the consolidated
statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in
the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

RITHERK
RREGARSRERME  BeR
ReEBYEEFERS RBTFR
(BMBREERITEL - FARSE
RERMIGREHRNRERASS
B B AERA B R HOR R AT
BEEE - TR

As at 31 December

M12A831H

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

THT FHT

Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTHER 17,854 22,190
Bank overdrafts (Note 27) R1TBXZ (Kat27) (2,485) (1,929)
15,369 20,261

Pledged bank deposits BRIRITIF K 46,619 6,718
61,988 26,979

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits. Bank balances carry interest
at prevailing market rate ranging from 0.01% to 1.4% and
0.5% to 2.1% per annum as at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

ReRIRITEKERASBFEENE
& MG EBIRTTIF 5K - R 2020 F K 2019
F12A31H RITEBRD RS EN
T0.01%E1.4% N05%FE2.1%H
WITMIBFIEEB -

RITHESRERBRITERNELNZR
FREUA B
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23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED 23. & KRBT UREIKHH

BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

The Group have Renminbi (“"RMB"”), HKD and United States
Dollar (“USD") denominated cash and bank balances, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s RMB and USD denominated monetary assets at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

WITER @
REBESARE (AR BT
RET(ER]) HENES RBTL
#%o RMSAEEEHEIINERR - A
RETA AR RAHMES - NiE
EHK  AEEARYRETIHE
S EEREDMENT

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
RMB ARE 150 125
usD ETT 4,412 3,149

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. As at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group has bank
deposits of approximately HK$46,619,000 and HK$6,718,000
are pledged to secure banking facility and are therefore
classified as current assets. The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings. The
balance as at 31 December 2020 were carried at the prevailing
market interest rate at 1% per annum and it was denominated
in HKD.

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

BRI HIEERE TAEEIR
TRERNERTRITHOT - 122020
F£12H31HK%2019F12 A31H &
S B IRTTIE % 46,619,00078 7T &
6,718,000 LB T M ARG IR TBY
Al pBEARBEE - DB
RITHFE RGN EERBRITERIER
Mo B2 202012 A31 BR& & A
WM EFNREF 1% 8L AB T
EIRERE

2. E5BAREARENRE

As at 31 December

®W12A318
2020 2019
2020 FF 20194
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Trade payables B 5 e I8 26,184 39,643
Bills payables ANE S 29,068 36,742
55,252 76,385
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24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

The credit period on trade payables is generally 30 to 120 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are paid within the credit time frame.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting period:

2. ESENRERENERE
BHORMNFBEBNEESHRE 2302
1208 - AEEE #ES B ERKEE
BE - BERMEENRBEREESRR
T Ao

AT REHRERRREEZAHZ7
ME RN RIBNRE DN

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
0 to 30 days 0&30H 3,874 8,200
31 to 60 days 31260 H 7,593 11,848
61 to 90 days 61290 H 7,232 11,702
91 to 120 days 91 & 120 H 724 7,707
Over 120 days #1120 H 6,761 186
26,184 39,643

Bills payables are all mature within 30 to 120 days. The
following is an aged analysis of bills payables presented based
on the date of bills at the end of each reporting period:

JEMEZHEHGMN30E 120 H R EBEY - A
TASREFRBEZEBHR7H
JEAT EE M ERE D AT ¢

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
0 to 30 days 0&30H 14,065 14,209
31 to 60 days 31260 H 7,223 11,219
61 to 90 days 61Z90H 6,083 10,006
91 to 120 days 91& 120 H 1,697 1,308
29,068 36,742
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 25. HitFEN B R EFTE A

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Salary and bonus payables FESH & RIEAT 2,063 2,762
Other payables H A fE A IR 2,178 3,026
Accrued expenses FEETE A 1,749 2,151
5,990 7,939

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

26. S EE

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Billings in advance of performance B4 2 B FRIE 1,915 2,801
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26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 26. SNEBE W)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract HEMREHNEBESHEERTEN —
liabilities recognised as follows: M TR T
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
At 1 January R1 A1 HME 2,801 3,787
Consideration received ERE 1,369 1,410
Revenue recognised that was included in B R AT AL
the contract liabilities balance at the BfEHE
beginning of the year (2,255) (2,396)
At 31 December M 12 A31 BH&RER 1,915 2,801
Generally, the Group receives a lump sum amount of product BT AEEERPEIAAREE
fee in advance for a specified range of time from customers BEENEGEBANELIRR —FER
when they sign the contract. This lump sum amount received is B WHRHNFRERTEERRENE
recognised as a contract liabilities initially and to be recognised & WHEBARESEERAS K

as revenue at the point in time when performances obligation
are satisfied.

27. BORROWINGS/BANK OVERDRAFTS 27. R RITEX
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current — secured BNH — & K 1
Bank overdrafts (Note (c)) RITEX (K72 () 2,485 1,929
Bank loans (Note (a), (b), (©), (d) and (e)  $RITEZ (K15 @) - (b)
© (@) X)) 51,888 42,289
54,373 44,218
Non-current — secured JEBNH— A F
Bank loans (Note (a), (b), (c), (d) and (e) $RITE X (K1:t @) - b) - (©
(d) % (e) 50,724 -
Total borrowings B 105,097 44,218
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27. BORROWINGS/BANK OVERDRAFTS (Continued)

According to the repayment schedule, the bank borrowings and
bank overdrafts are repayable as follows:

27. €% BITEX )
RIEEREME  RTERRRTE
TERWT

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FHIT
Fixed-rate borrowings TE F = 5K 5,696 -
Variable-rate borrowings FEER 96,916 42,289
Bank overdrafts RITHE X 2,485 1,929
105,097 44,218
Less: amount classified as current B RN —F AR HE
liabilities secured borrowings H B R EIERIGHK
due within one year or contain a HmE B ERER
repayment on demand clause & RIE (54,373) (44,218)
50,724 -
The carrying amount of the variable-rate borrowings are FEERNEEEAEENT
repayable as follow:
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Variable-rate: SN
Within one year —F R 47,907 42,289
Over one year but within two years —FEERRER 27,715 -
Over two years but within five years MEANEBERAER 21,294 -
96,916 42,289
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27. BORROWINGS/BANK OVERDRAFTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(@

(e)

The term loan and property mortgages (”Facility 1”) is approximately
HK$16,165,000 (2019: HK$NIl) as at 31 December 2020. As at 31
December 2020, Facility | was guaranteed by Hanvey Group Holdings
Limited. Facility | bear interest ranged from 2.50% to 3.40% per
annum for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The term loan, property mortgage and factoring facility (“Facility
I1") is approximately HK$4,297,000 and HK$6,246,000 as at 31
December 2019 and 2020 respectively. Facility Il was guaranteed by
Mr. Cheuk and Mrs Cheuk. As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, Facility
Il was secured with corporate guaranteed provided by Hanvey Group
Holdings Limited. Facility Il bear interest ranged from 2.65% t0 2.75%
(2019: 4.5% to 5.68%) per annum for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The term loan, overdraft and factoring facility (“Facility 11”) is
approximately HK$25,029,000 and HK$52,721,000 as at 31
December 2019 and 2020 respectively. As at 31 December 2020,
Facility Il was guaranteed by Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk, secured
by the property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of
approximately HK$22,613,000 (2019: HK$23,422,000), investment
property with carrying amount of approximately HK$10,748,000
(2019: HK$14,200,000) and bank deposits HK$46,619,000 (2019:
HK$6,718,000). Facility Ill bear interest ranged from 1.93% to 6.13%
(2019: 3.5% to 3.88%) per annum for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The term loan and property mortgage (“Facility IV") is approximately
HK$19,242,000 (2019: HK$14,892,000) as at 31 December 2020. As
at 31 December 2020, Facility IV was guaranteed by Hanvey Group
Holdings Limited. Facility IV bear interest ranged from 1.75% to
3.25% (2019: 4.35% to 5.53%) per annum for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The term loan and property mortgage (“Facility V") is approximately
HK$10,724,000 (2019: HK$NiIl) as at 31 December 2020. As at 31
December 2020. Facility V was guaranteed by Mrs. Cheuk. Facility V
bear Interest with 4.80% per annum for the year ended 31 December
2020.

27. 8 BT EX
H&t

(a)

(b)

(e)

2020512 A318  THEZR L
EEA ((@EI]) A% 16,165,000/%8 T
(20194F : =% T) <R 2020 12 A 31
A -#E mEEEEERERAFIRE
ER -BEIREZE2020F12A31H
IEFERFEFE250% £3.40% T8 -

R2019F & 2020F 12 A31H » £
B MERRRERERE (TREN])
7 Bl A #14,297,000 78 7T K& 6,246,000
BT BAINRELEEREAKNREE
R 20195 %2020 12 A31H - &l
BAlfmEEERERERABIRERR]
EARVEIRIR - BE I A EE 2020512 A
BT LEFERFFE265%E2.75%
(20194 : 45% E5.68%) 5t 8. °

20194 & 2020F12 8318 €
B B MRERE ([@EM) 57!
A #25,029,000 7% 7T & 52,721,000 7%
JC° 202012 A31H - R E IR £
FAERERAKRHERRAERAEBEAD
22,613,000 T (2019 4F : 23,422,000
BT MYE - BE REE  REERN
10,748,000 7T (20194 : 14,200,000
BIT) KR E Y % % 46,619,000 7% 7T
(20194 : 6,718,000/ 7T) M IR 1T 1%
FAEHE R - B E A E E20204 12 A
BTALEFERFANEIIEB%E6.13%
(20194 : 3.5% £=3.88%) 5B

HR2020F 128318 FHER LB E
IR ([BEIV]) &4919,242,00078 7T
(20194F : 14,892,003% 7T) 1 20204
12A31H ®MEIVAEEEEZRSE
fRAREMHEIER - BEEIVAE Z2020
FNRANBEFEERFAMNE1T5%E

3.25% (20194 : 4.35% £5.53% ) &t
5 o

R2020F12 8318 FHEZ LB E
AR ((BEV]) A£410,724,0007% 7T
(20194 : T IT) 72020412 A 31
H BMEVEHEAKERER BEV
REZE2020F12 A31 BILFEEFF
K4.80%FTE °
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group leased its motor vehicles, office equipment and
leasehold building under lease liabilities with lease term of three
to five years. The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
to underlying lease liabilities are at 5.1% and 4.29% per annum

as at 31 December 2019 and 2020 respectively.

No arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental

payments.

28. HEAE
AEBBREHESGEHHETE WA
EREUAREEEF  ABA=-21
4 o PA2019F KX 202012 A318 -
HEAENINETFIEEERTES
BIATES1% 24.29% o

ANEE W EET L RRTEE R HE ©

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

BREHEENR EEREEMFRRE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
M12A31H M®12A31H
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 & 20194 2020 & 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET FExT FET
Lease liabilities payable: EREAESE -
Within one year 1F R 1,343 2,427 1,274 2,289
Within a period of more than 14 A H1E R BB
one year but not more 25
than two years 581 1,272 554 1,222
Within a period of more than 29 LA H{B BB
two years but not more 54
than five years 361 470 346 463
2,285 4,169 2,174 3,974
Less: future financial charge  J& : RK @& & A (111) (195) = -
Present value of lease HERERE
obligation 2,174 3,974 2,174 3,974
Less: Amount due for o M 121@ AR
settlement within twelve EIEBA Y
months (shown under S H RS
current liabilities) BEHET) (1,274) (2,237)
Amount due for settlement 1218 A& BB 4
after twelve months (shown Y& %8 (GERE
under non-current liabilities) ~ B{E&EXE ) 900 1,743

The Group’s lease liabilities are secured by the lessor’s charge

over the motor vehicles.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R 7
Movements of the share capital of the Company are as follows: RRTRRAEHIOT !
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
Shares value share value
R4 E H{E e B [EEE)
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T FER T FHET
Authorised EE
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 B E B
each 0.01%7T
At 1 January and 31 R1TATER
December 12 A31H 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRHBE
At 1 January and 31 ®1A1TBR
December 12HA31H 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
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30. RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

30. KRB

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

% 12 % 8 2t e #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

At 1 January 2019 R2019F 1 A1H 42,344 (22,233) 20,111
Loss and total comprehensive FHRNEBEBEREZEHE

expense for the year FEk - (10,153) (10,153)
At 31 December 2019 MR2019F12 A31H

and 1 January 2020 202018 1H 42,344 (32,386) 9,958
Loss and total comprehensive FABEMEERX

expense for the year FRE - (11,519) (11,519)

At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 42,344 (43,905) (1,560)

At 31 December 2020, the Company had reserves
of approximately HK$Nil available for distribution in
accordance with the Company law of Cayman Islands (2019:

HK$9,958,000).
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31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessor
Investment properties were leased for a term of 2 year. At the
end of each reporting period, the Group had contracted with a
tenant for the following future minimum lease payments:

1. REHERIE
AEBERHEA
WAL A2 E N ERE K -
AEED R TR SER S 3
BETH -

As at 31 December

R12A318
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year 1F R 130 312
In the second year F_F - 130
130 442

The Group leases investment properties under non-cancellable
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of 2 years,
with options to renew the lease terms upon expiry when all
terms are re-negotiated. None of these leases includes any
contingent rentals.

AEBERBEAIHBELEHERER
EME- -xNBEHRR2F  £HOZ
MY EBMBGRREAERED - %
FHOMERREIMNIAESE
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32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32. EEHEA
At the end of each reporting period, the following assets were RERER - THEECER TR
pledged to bank secure the Group's banking facilities: TTURERAEBMRITHRE -

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) 1% - R K& (A5 15) 22,613 23,422
Financial asset at fair value through profit %A F{EsT AB2EH
or loss (Note 22) TREE(WiF22) 17,780 17,348
Investment properties (Note 17) wEYEKF17) 10,748 14,200
Pledged bank deposits (Note 23) BEHIRRIT R (K iE23) 46,619 6,718
97,760 61,688
33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 33. BRIREFFHE
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all REBAEEEL2ELEKREBBIE—
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme BRI ANFESEE - A ENEE
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under BEREEBNEESBIEAE  WIERY
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant SABENES o ANEB IR
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution matched by RANHI5% Bt 213k - miE 8 I E
employees but subject to a maximum amount of HK$1,500 per HAREST - ERE 2% AE A 1,500
month for each employee to the scheme. A
Employees of the subsidiaries and an associate in the PRC are FEMBATIREEATEE AP
members of the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by BT BEN AR EBEARESET 289K
the PRC government. The subsidiaries and an associate were BofBATI RS NG BIRETH
required to contribute a certain percentage of the payroll of ERBETFASLLARARESET2IH K
their staff to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only EABMNNES - ANEBEBBEENKRS
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme HEM—SEEEREEH]T - F
is to make the required contributions. There were no forfeited RNy AE I ERAKEES &
contributions utilised to offset employers’ contributions for the oo AT AE SRR EER - W RN R
year. And at the end of the Track Record Period, there was AR D R AR B FE AT R o

no forfeited contribution available to reduce the contributions
payable in the future years.
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The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) by way
of written resolutions passed on 20 June 2018. The Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on the date it was adopted. The purpose of
the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
participants for their contribution to our Group and/or to enable
our Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to our Group and any
entity in which our Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”).

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (a)
any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries and
any Invested Entity; (b) any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive directors) of our Company, any of
its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (c) any supplier of goods
or services to any member of our Group or any Invested Entity;
(d) any customer of our Group or any Invested Entity; (e) any
person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to our Group or any Invested Entity; (f)
any shareholder of any member of our Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
our Group or any Invested Entity; (g) any adviser (professional
or otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or business
development of our Group or any Invested Entity; and (h) any
other group or classes of participants who have contributed or
may contribute, by way of joint venture, business alliance, other
business arrangement or otherwise, to the development and
growth of our Group.

Ordinary shares of the Company (“Share(s)”) may be allotted
and issued upon the exercise of the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme. The total number of Shares which may
be allotted and issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the Shares in issue on the Listing Date, which was 100,000,000
Shares, representing approximately 10% of Shares in issue as
at the date of this annual report. The maximum number of
Shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company (or the subsidiaries) from time to time.

AARMRE ([BRER]) R2018F6 A
0 A BBEMRZERERTMNEAD
BB A B ([T E) - 8
Rt B ERMBER AR A 10
FoEREFENENEREEBA
THAEEFTEE R SEE) kAR
E/SEAREBARERBRESRY
BE  UHRSIHALERAEERTE
TRBRENTAEE ((HREER))
BEEENANER -

BREAINAER2EERRE (AN
RA) - HAEAIM B L A REREIRE
ERNEMNEZBIKBES B E
AITES : (D ARE - EEMHE
RAHAEA IR E BB EFAISENTT
EX(BREBUIFATES)  RA
SEEAKERARRERARKREER
RS MM EAIHER : (A
SESEMEREERBZEAES
(e) A =B AT HIR B B R IR HA
7 FBEREMRMFZEMAL
FER  OAEBEEAKE RFHE
MR E B R 2 EARRAAEEE
IR B R B SRR & B BT E1T
ZEMBHFZEARFEA  (QAEHE
HAEMBIRE B 2 ERXBFREL
EBBRZEMER (BXHHMT
) A AR - k(B &H AR
BELE EBMBEHEMEB L
FEM T ABAEEHER NI RIE
H BB EAE AR RIE R 2 80 -

KRR LB (R ])) ATeERTTER
B AR R R B R B AR RE T B 3% [
BT o MJRE AT IR IR AR ERT 2 R
REBF A EMBARETEERDN
FrEEREmAC T KB THAR (D B2
AHTEHBBLEMAHEEITRMOM
10% - B1100,000,000 &A% (5 + ABE 7
RERBIEEITRMHEI10% © AJEE
EFTERE AR AT B R A S E 1A
Ha BT B R M ERARITED
FEEREMEZERETHNRESRHG
HFEARETEHBLALT (HMMBA
A T2 EITIRZAAI30% °
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34. B REFHE| )

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised, cancelled or outstanding
options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of Share in issue for the time being. Any further
grant of options in excess of such limit in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant shall be
subject to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the
Company with such participant and his/her close associates
(or his/her associates if such Participant is a connected person)
abstaining from voting. An offer of the grant of an option under
the Share Option Scheme may be accepted within 21 days from
the date of grant together with a remittance of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof. An option may be
exercised during such period as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine, save that such period shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the Directors
otherwise determine and state in the offer to a grantee, a
grantee is not required to hold an option for any minimum
period nor achieve any performance targets before any options
granted under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised. The
subscription price for the Shares on the exercise of the option
shall be determined at the discretion of the Board which shall
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of the grant of the option, which must be a trading
day; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the option; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Share.

No share option has been granted, exercised , cancelled or
lapsed by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 and up to
the date of this annual report.
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35. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

The Group entered into the following major non-cash
transactions which are not reflected in the consolidated
statement of cash flows:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of approximately HK$813,000 (2019:
HK$2,496,000).

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

5. T EFBERSF
(a) AEEITTUTAERRGAE

MERARMANETEIRRERS

HZE2020E12 A31HIEFE
AEEMNERAREERMESR
ERYFEIR £ 1L 149 813,000/ 7T
(20194 : 2,496,000/ 7T) °

(b) REEBFELERGENHER

TRALAEEREZHELN
BEEE RRASAFERSE
H-METPHELNBELRHE
EMEBELAARKRERESR
$§%.:ﬁ$/ﬂ\£ﬁ$uw§i§ﬂ iﬁﬁ@

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing BEB RERES °
activities.
Lease

liabilities Borrowings Total

HEAE CE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET FET

At 1 January 2019 HA2019F1818 (4,231) (42,556) (46,787)
Financing cash flows BRERS T 2,974 4,008 6,982
Accrued interest FEEHFIE (221) (3,741) (3,962)
New lease entered Hin k&8 (2,496) - (2,496)

At and 31 December 2019 and R2019%512A31H

1 January 2020 k20201818 (3,974) (42,289) (46,263)
Financing cash flows MERE R 2,683 (54,942) (52,259)
Accrued interest FEET IS (150) (4,814) (4,964)
Exchange realignment I 3 - (567) (567)
New lease entered MAHE (813) = (813)

Lease termination BIEHE 80 = 80
At 31 December 2020 20205128318 (2,174) (102,612) (104,786)
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36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balance disclosed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into
related parties transactions:

36. EXRBEH TS
BREAMBREL M T HEORS
Bt REBTVEBETTS

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

Name of related parties Notes Nature of transaction 2020 2019
S 28 Mt XBHE 2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHERT FHT
Recurring:
REM:
Mr. Cheuk (b) Rental expense 720 720
e ez
Smart Hill (a) Rental income 156 168
24 G ON
Notes: Hiat -
(@)  Smart Hill Enterprises Limited (“Smart Hill”) is connected person () EBHOLEERAR([B4)) AFAEAL

which is wholly-owned by the sister of Mrs. Cheuk.

(b)  Mr. Cheuk, a director of the Company.

Compensation of key management personnel

The directors of the Company are identified as key management
members of the Group and the compensation of directors and
key management is set out in Notes 10 and 11.

Balances with connected person

Smart Hill is a connected person in which the transaction with
Smart Hill falls under the definition of “continuing connected
transaction” in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules with a
detailed disclosure of the relationship above.

Annual Report 2020 43R

(BEARRWBHKRZERES)

(b) E5EE AABW—RES -

FECTEAEWNE
AAPEEETALAEREZTZEEE
KE BEERTEEEENS SN
10K 11 -

EREE A T BR

BHRREEAL  HPRBENRS
ffA GEM EMRAIF 20 B (1580 E
RBINEE B EXBEREROFAR

= o

157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 37. EXEE

158

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bills payables, bank overdraft, borrowings and lease
liabilities disclosed in Notes 24, 27 and 28, respectively, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

AEBEREER  BRELERKE
BEBERASBAIFELE  TAR
RizEm AL IR o RE E2020F &
2019 12 A3 B ILFE  REBH

BREREHTE

AEENEARERERFRAN -
BIED RN FE24 ~ 27 R 28 W EH
JERER - RiTEX  EREEES
& BHBRBESEESSEYEAR
AR AEEEZD (BECETRA
NMERE) o

RABEFTHRTERGERE R
EREHH D KRAREFER
BAKRA RS BEREBER - A #
BBBEITHR D RBITHESIED
RBEEFFOEBEBENERE -
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37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued) 37. EXREE (@)
The following is the gearing ratio at the end of each reporting SWMEMARERNBELERDOT -
period:

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Total borrowings (Note (a)) BIEFK (M7 (@) 133,854 84,934
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BeREEEEY
(Note (c)) (B () (61,974) (28,908)
Net debts (EOYES 71,880 56,026
Total equity (Note (b)) R (131 b)) 44,830 62,977
Gearing ratio BEEAR/LE 160% 89%
Notes: Bst -
(@)  Total borrowings represent bills payables, bank overdrafts, borrowings (@) #HEREENRE RTEX  BERK
and lease liabilities. HEak-
(b)  Total equity includes share capital and reserves at the end of each (b) MBEZVIESREPROBRARGERE -
reporting period.
() Cash and cash equivalents include pledge bank deposits and cash and (0 BeRkReEEMEIECERRITER
bank balances. MR RRITAEE -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

38. FR T &
SRMIEDE

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial asset at FVTPL 1R FEFTA B 8
THEE 18,597 19,180
Financial assets measured at i3 7N =y
amortised cost: THEE
— Trade receivables — B 5B FIE 16,190 44,667
— Deposits and other receivables —R& R HAMEKFHIE 940 1,915
— Pledged bank deposits — BT IRITIFR 46,619 6.718
- Cash and bank balances — & RIRTTAEER 17,854 22,190
100,200 94,670
Financial liabilities cRMERE
Financial liabilities measured at g )N =)
amortised cost: THEE -
— Trade and bills payables — B9 RNFERENZER 55,252 76,385
— Other payables and accruals — E B SR TE M ERT B A 5,990 7,939
- Bank overdrafts —RITEX 2,485 1,929
— Borrowings — &5 102,612 42,289
— Lease liabilities —MHEaE 2,174 3,974
168,513 132,516
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €@ T A ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments and details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to pledged bank deposits, fixed-rate borrowings and lease
liabilities. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and borrowings.

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s exposures
of the bank balances are not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within short maturity period and thus they are not
included in sensitivity analysis.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy. However, management closely monitors its exposure
to future cash flow interest rate risk as a result of changes in
market interest rates will consider hedging changes in market
interest rates should the need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, if the interest rate on all
variable-rate borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
loss/profit after tax for the year would have been increased/
decreased by approximately HK$856,810 and HK$369,220
respectively.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of each
of the Period and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for the borrowings in existence at that date. The 100
basis point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the end of next reporting period.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €@ T A ()

Market risk (Continued) g Rk ()
Currency risk BHE R

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities (including cash and bank balances, trade receivables,
other receivables, deposits and prepayments, trade and bills
payables, other payables and accrued expenses and lease
liabilities) denominated in currencies other than functional
currency of the respective group entity at the end of each
reporting period are as follows:

REREHARANSEBMERLEEEE
LNEEDENAEBEEEERE
& (RIS RIRITHES  ZEFHEKR
T HibEUWERIE - e RFER
E SN AR ENEE - AR
HEREERAREEAE) NER
BT :

The Group’s currency risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of US$ and RMB. Since HK$ is pegged to US$, the
Group does not expect any significant movement in US$/HK$
exchange rate.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivities to a
10% increase and decrease in the functional currency of the
group entities against relevant foreign currency. 10% is the
sensitivity rate which represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign currency rate. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding RMB denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 10% change. A positive number indicates
an decrease in post-tax loss for the year HK$ strengths 10%
against RMB. For a 10% weakening of HK$ against RMB, there
would be an equal but opposite impact on the post-tax loss for
the year.

Assets Liabilities
BE =L
As at 31 December As at 31 December
MW12831H M12A831H
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 & 2019 2020 & 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET FET FET
RMB AR 161 759 597 1,399
usD ETT 18,166 19,313 = -
Sensitivity analysis B E T

AEE@EEARETEEPRETR
N Z R o Eh S TR LI -
AREEMET, BTEEFRAE
AR -

TRALAEENEEERINESHR
SA BN LF R T 10% 8 8%
JE ° 10% SURE L R IR E R EHSNE
PEXRSIER RE B B 2 7T - RE D
TEBRAAREIENHRTFEE
BIHE W HREHIRIZ 10% #) &
HABREBRE FHRTETLILARE
FHE 10% RIS AR B R BRI D 8
TRARBEE10%  BIEHFEAR
BEBRERBSFERRTE

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2020 2019
2020 & 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
RMB AR 36 53

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency risk
as the exposures at the end of each reporting period do not
reflect the exposure.

ARPEZRR  SREDTTER
FEBINERR - F A HmEBRD
JeR\ gz 1~ B F2 ek [ A LB
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. @i T B (4)

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank balances
and pledged bank deposits, trade receivables, deposit and other
receivables. The carrying amounts of these balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

In respect of bank balances and pledged bank deposits, the
credit risk is considered to be low as the counterparties are
reputable banks. The existing counterparties do not have
defaults in the past. Therefore, ECL rate is assessed to be close to
zero and no loss allowance was made as at 31 December 2019
and 2020.

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime ECL
for all trade receivables. To measure the ECL, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.
The Group has performed historical analysis and identified the
key economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL. It also
considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, trade receivables that
are individually significant have been separately assessed for
impairment. The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical settlement records and
past experience.

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from individual
customers in relation to design and development,
manufacturing; and distribution of watch products. As at 31
December 2019 and 2020, the top three debtors and the largest
debtor accounted for approximately 41% and 17% (2019:
67% and 43%) of the Group’s trade receivables balance.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables
are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually or
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The directors considered the credit risk of the Group’s deposits
and other receivables are relatively low as they have a low
risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. Thus, the
directors considered the credit risk is insignificant and no loss
allowance is recognised.

38. €W T B (%)

h 35 B (48)

EERE (&)
rEBYMAEZERER—EEELR
BB FETEREERE - ZERT
EHRE P B E RIS B 6 & A8
BEBERNERESN  WEBREFPH
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ORENH - REFE—RIEEREP
TET/\EQ?‘E}H A °
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HMEEEF  BAKIRERER
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €@ T A ()

Market risk (Continued) miEE b (&)

Credit risk (Continued) EEREE (&)

(a) Allowance for ECL of trade receivables (a) EZIENFIETEREEEISRH#E
On that basis, the allowance for ECL of trade receivables Rz B PA20204F 220194
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 was determined as 12A3TENE SEWGKIBETE
follows: N

Probability of default approach
E Ry

Morethan ~ Morethan ~ Morethan ~ Morethan ~ More than
Tdaybut ~ 91dayshut 181dayshut  fTyearbut 2 yearsbut

less than less than less than less than less than
90 days 180 days 365 days 2 years 3 years

31 December 2020 Current past due past due past due past due past due Total
BE1E BE9IE BHMIE Bz 8822

20%128318 G 90X 180% 365% Pk 3 st
- Group A -A 0.04% 0.04% 9.59% 9.59% 63.21% 87.03%
- Group B -B4 0.04% 0.04% - - 4.87% -

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TiEn TiEn TEn TEn

Gross carrying amount BEAE

- Group A -A 5,631 6,724 40 152 897 1,581 15,025%
- Group B -3 217 1 - - 3,000 - 3,278*
KL EBEERR

-Group A -A# 2 3 4 15 567 1376 1,967*
-Group B -B4 - -* - - 146 - 146*
Allowance for ECL RACEEERE 2 3 4 15 M3 1376 2113

* The amount is less than HK$1,000. * 241,000 7T
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €t T B (&)
Market risk (Continued) miEE b (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EEREE (&)
(a)  Allowance for ECL of trade receivables (Continued) (a) EZIENFEREGEEDEEERE
7HEE)

Probability of default approach
BORERE

More than More than More than More than More than
Tdaybut — 91daysbut 187 days but Tyearbut 2 yearsbut

less than less than less than less than less than
90 days 180 days 365 days 2 years 3 years

31 December 2019 Current past due past due past due past due past due Total
AFIE BENE BEEINE o BH2E

20195128318 Gl 90X 180% 365% 21 L it
- Group A Y 0.68% 0.68% 0.68% 0.68% 2.11% 100.00%
- Group B -84 1.08% 1.08% 1.08% 1.08% 1.08% 100.00%

HKY000  HKFO00  HK$000  HKS000  HKFO0D  HK$000  HK§'000
T TARL TR TR T Tk T

(Gross carrying amount SREE

-Group A -A# 20,605 2830 716 2,909 2,120 1 29,231

-Group B -B4 10,384 1439 273 894 2,847 - 15,837

EL RHEEER

- Group A -A 140 20 5 20 45 1 231

-Group B -B# 112 15 3 9 31 - 170

Allowance for ECL EHEERRER 252 3% 8 9 76 1 40
In valuation the ECL of trade receivables, gross carrying RHEE ZRIKZENESREZEER
amount are classified to 2 main items. Group B represent HREEESBEAMBEEZIER -
large corporate customers with long term relationship, BAEERHEIFHEANRELER
and Group A represent new customers and medium size P mABERERRPEER -
customers.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. £ T B (&)
Market risk (Continued) i E R (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EEREE (&)
(a) Allowance for ECL of trade receivables (Continued) (a) EBENFEZEEBHEEZEER
()
The reconciliation of allowance for ECL of trade receivables A2020E K% 201912 A318 -
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 was as follows: Z WG IETEHREEEIERE
ROEERI0T
HK$'000
FHETT
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1 H 394
Allowance for ECL for the year FAEBREEEERE 7
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 2019412 A31H X 202061 A1 H 401
Allowance for ECL for the year FNEHEEBERE 1,712
At 31 December 2020 2020 12 A31 H 2,113
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk

For the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and bank
overdrafts and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for their non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group has required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time
band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest cash flows are at floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from current interest rates at
the end of each reporting period.

38. €W T B (%)
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

38.

ERMIA®
G EE (8)

Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (E)
More than More than
Weighted On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
average or within less than lessthan  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
mETH ESE] BR-F BEWEF ARRRE
Rl -FR BHRME BHRDE id-£ 3 HEE
% HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TER TEr
As at 31 December 2020 R20205128318
Trade payables EAREMTA - 26,184 - - 26,184 26,184
Bill payables EREE - 29,068 - - 29,068 29,068
Other payables and accrued M ERFER
eXpenses EirER - 5990 - - 5990 5,990
Borrowings B3 329 54,813 28,896 2,09 105,738 102,612
Bank overdrafts R/iITEY 6.13 2,498 - - 2498 2,485
Lease liabilities HEsf 429 1383 581 361 2,285 2,174
119,896 29477 2,390 171,763 168,513
More than More than
Weighted On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
average or within less than less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
mEYs ESeE il 3 ERmE ABR%S
LK —EM ENEES BAREF nELq HEf
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Tt T T Tt T
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F 128318
Trade payables EAEMTE - 39,643 - - 39,643 39,643
Bill payables ENEE 4 36,907 - - 36,907 36,742
Other payables and accrued HftERFER
eXpenses EirER - 7939 - - 7939 7939
Borrowings EE 35 44,781 - - 44,781 42,289
Bank overdrafts FOE% 6 1,935 - - 1,935 1929
Lease liabilties HERfk 5 2427 121 470 4,169 3974
133,632 1212 470 135,374 132,516
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of
borrowings with repayable on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amount includes interest payments computed using contractual
rates. Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company do not consider that it is probable that
the bank will exercise its discretion to immediate repayment.
The directors of the Company believe that such borrowings will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled dates set out in the

loan agreements.

38. €W T B (%)

?ﬁi%@[?ﬁ j
mBELERE (E)

R 2 REE A EFIRBEER
169 &2 P B 197 T AR SR I SR N B B o3
e ZRABRRAAONERFER
FERR &8 E BAKBEAI AR -
ARABEFRBRIT T AR BETER
BRZRNKER - AARZEFMEE
BRAE SR RIR BRI E P E A ET 2
BEEE -

Maturity Analysis - borrowings
subject to a repayment

on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

A2 -ARBENBEREEREENER

More than More than
On demand 1 year 2 years Total
or within  butless than  but less than discounted
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows
RERSIR BB-F BBWF HRRE
—£R BLRMEF BLREF MEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
At 31 December 2020 #®2020%F 12 A31H 44,736 3,669 3,483 51,888
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 A31H 42,289 - - 42,289
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Borrowings with repayment on demand clauses are included
in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2020, the aggregate carrying amounts of these borrowings
amounted to HK$42,289,000 and HK$51,888,000, respectively.
Taken into account the Group’s financial position, the directors
of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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38. £ T B (&)
G EE (8)
FBESER ()
REREBOER
W MR E ke — &

B LAt B B
W] T °R2019F

12 A31HK2020F 12 A31H %%

tERABEmES 5
% 51,888,000 7T

/542,289,000 7T

BHRR > KRBEETRRERATD
KA REITIE RIS RRKIZANER - K

instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to
change if changes in variable rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of each reporting period.
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lenders will exercise their discretionary rights to demand NAIEERREBETEREER D
immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe FHATEEEER B EEE  FEERN
that such borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the T
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements,
details of which are set out in the table below:
More than More than
Weighted On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
average or within less than lessthan ~ undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
il 237 ESE] BR-F BEWEF AHRRE
Rl - BYRME BHRDE id-£ 3 REE
% HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR TiEn ThER THR TEr
At 31 December 2020 R20205128318
- Variable-rate s ik 387 45,19 3,669 3,483 52,348 51,888
More than More than
Weighted On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
average or within less than less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
T ESeE il 3 ERmE AER% S
LK —ER BRmE BORRE RERE e
% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Thn ThI AL ThT
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 128318
- Variable-rate s ik 35 44,781 - - 44,781 42,289
The amount included above for variable interest rate (EREEIRIES - Ep )=t =t N

FEZMEMEG LA BE

FEMETAZE

HREED -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

—  the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market prices; and

—  the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The carrying amount of other financial assets and liabilities
carried at amortised cost, approximate their respective fair
values due to the relatively short-term nature of these financial
instruments.

For financial reporting purpose, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the input to the fair value measurements in its
entirety.

The table below gives the information about how the fair
value of these financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and input used).

The different level are defined as follows:

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the assets
or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

38. £ T A (&)

AV {ENE
tREELSRBEN R VEETEN
T~

— BEEEERREGBERNERR
FMBEEBECCREERSRA
ERNAFEDNZEMSREE
E &

- HpomEEMERAGRMHAF
BNREBEAREEEAERR
RennITEE °

HHEEK ARz EBEREERE
EMEmEESEAZAFERSE R
ArzEem TABHSEMLEE -

RPBHREMS * 2 FEFERER
FEMFEZHABRBETEREE R
ABBHATHEA=EZBEBEZ S
WMEBE IR FB22HMAEIH -

TR EMEREAFEFENS
REEMEBRABEZAFENNEE
MER (LERMB/BEDNEREA
2z -

TRBRATHT :

.« BIRATEHEBHAREE
o5 8 4 % BB 10 49 #R1H (R 42 38
) Fi{§ 2 ATEHE -

.« E2RATFEEEARLE VAN
Bz BEMMEHAELR
AT E 1 (DR MEHE) AT (B
MBS ) B2 AR
B2 ATFENE -

o FEIRRFEFERERMBES
EMEZATERE  BEEH
BELBBIIFERATBENS
R ABE (TABEHA
gug) -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €t T A& ()
Fair value measurements (Continued) NEEFE(E)
Fair value Fair value
as at as at
31 December 31 December  Fair value Valuation technique
Financial assets 2020 2019  hierarchy and key input(s)
2020 20194
12A31H 128318 EETER
TRMEE W FE BWAFE AFESR BEBARE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Unlisted club debentures 440 440  Level 2 Market approach-
Reference to
quoted price in an
active market
JE T RZEERE S E2/ MISE-2ZERTIHR
B
Key management personnel 17,780 17,348  Level 2 Market approach-
life insurance redemption value quoted
by the insurance company
FTEEBEEBABASRR B2 MimE— R D RIHRE
=R
Held-for-trading securities 377 1,392 Level 1 Market approach-quoted
price in an active market
SRR AT EFABRENE E—R MEE— GRS WE

MEENFFEERS

Annual Report 2020 43R

173



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

38.

39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements (Continued)

There were no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3, during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, details refer to the
respective notes.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate their
fair values.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

At the date of this report, the Company has direct and indirect
equity interests in the following subsidiaries:

38.

39.

£RTE %
/A\S'Z{EE-I—E (&)
PREZE2020F K% 2019412 A31 81t
FECFIREE2H B EER
INMEER R HE IR -

AEENHY EREENSREHR
BAFEREFBENES M -

EEZRR REAPBHRRKRIZEH
KA REEN BB ENE
E{ERAFERE -

B BB Rl AR
RARE B ARARUTHEAR
A i AR ARE -

Attributable equity
interest held
by the Company
RARFRERERS
As at 31 December
M12B318
Issued and fully
Principal place of business paid share capital/
and Place and date of registered capital at Principal
Name of subsidiaries incorporation Legal entity the date of this report 2020 2019 activities Notes
TEEEHEUR RARERBERAR
HWRARAR EMRIBERAH ERER ARRA/EREER 200%F 20195 FEEER it
% %
Directly held:
ERRE
Beyond Blossom Investments BVI, 9 May 2017 Limited liability Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment @
Limited Company holding
BEREERAR ABEBRES BRERARA LRI RERR
201765490

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited 15 {& & B B R A 7
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

39. MY B~ R 15 (@)

Attributable equity
interest held
by the Company
RARFEREES
As at 31 December
M12A31A
Issued and fully
Principal place of business paid share capital/
and place and date of registered capital at Principal
Name of subsidiaries incorporation Legal entity the date of this report 2020 2019 activities Notes
TEEEHER RARERBERAR
WERARAR EMRIBHRAH ERER ARRA/EREER 2005 20195  FEEER it
% %
Indirectly held:
BEHE:
Precise Time Global Limited BVI, 10 May 2017 Limited liability Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment @
company holding
ERRRARAT ABEBRES ARERARA TaRIEr RERR
2017F5A10R
Big Hope Investment Limited BVI, 9 May 2017 Limited liability Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment @
company holding
RAEREBRAH ABERRES AREARA ERR1ET RARR
2017465A9A
Diamond Fountain Investment ~ BVI, 9 May 2017 Limited liability Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment @)
Limited company holding
BRREBRAT ARERRES BREALA ERR1ET RERR
2017465A9H
Vast Peak Enterprises Limited BVI, 21 September 2011 Limited liability Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment @
company holding
BHELRARAT AEEBRES BERELRAT LTaRIET RERR
011%59A218
Talent Gift International Limited ~ BVI, 3 January 2017 Limited liability Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment @
company holding
EBERERAF LREBARES BRERARA LakIET RERR
2017%1A38
3 Wells Watch Industries Limited -~ Hong Kong, Limited liability Ordinary capital 100 100 Trading and b)
2 September 1986 company HK$1,000,000 Distribution of
watches
ZHEEXARAA B 198659728 BREAAH LakA EEREIRDH
1,000,000 7% 70
Cheer China Group Holdings Hong Kong, Limited liability Ordinary capital HK$1 100 100 Investment b)
Limited 3 August 2011 company holding
HEEEERBRAA i 2011F8A3A ARERARA LRRAVEL RERR
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. B~ A& E )
Attributable equity
interest held
by the Company
RARFERERS
As at 31 December
M12A318
Issued and fully
Principal place of business paid share capital/
and place and date of registered capital at Principal
Name of subsidiaries incorporation Legal entity the date of this report 2020 2019 activities Notes
TREEHEUR REAGEEHERATR
WEAEEE EREIBER A EEER BRRE/HEREE 20205 2019%  TEEH st
% %
Cheer Wells Trading Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Ordinary capital 100 100 Investment b)
2 February 2015 company HK$10,000 holding
BAESERRA B%2015%2/28 BREAAH LBRA10,00087 RERER
Creative Profit Investment Hong Kong, Limited liability Ordinary capital 100 100 Investment b)
Limited 22 May 2008 company HK$10,000 holding
ENREERAR B8 200854228 EREALE EBRA10,00057T REER
3 Wells Catering Culture Limited  Hong Kong, Limited liability Ordinary shares HK$100 100 100 Investment b)
23 July 2019 company holding
SHRRXIERAT A 2019674238 BRERARA L@R100ET RERR
Shenzhen 3 Wells Watch PRC, 8 August 2005 Registered as a wholly Registered capital 100 100 Manufacturing of (b
Company Limited Foreign Owned HK$10,000,000 watches
Enterprise under PRC
law
R=HEERRAA ME 200558 A8H BETEEERMA AMHEA BREE
NEBERE 10,000,000 7T
Shenzhen Fujing Precision PRC, 24 September 2019 Registered as a wholly Registered capital 100 100 Manufacturingof (b
Technology Company Limited Foreign Owned RMB19,000,000 watches
Enterprise under PRC
law
RAEARENRERAE R 2019598248 REREEEIMA ARERARE BREE
IEBELE 19,000,000 7T
Shenzhen Fuyang Precision PRC, 26 September 2019 Registered as a wholly Registered capital 100 100 Manufacturing of (b
Technology Company Limited Foreign Owned RMB10,000,000 watches
Enterprise under PRC
law
RBGRENRARAR  hE - 2019F9A26F BREPEEREMA EMEAARY EREE
WEBELR 10,000,000 ¢
Hanvey Business Development ~ Hong Kong, 24 January 2020 Limited liability Ordinary capital HK$100 100 - Investment )
Limited company holding
EREXERARLT B 2020517248 BREMALT ERRA100ET REER

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited {E{Z & El#Z=ix R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

All subsidiaries now comprising the Group have adopted 31
December as their financial year end date.

Notes:

(@  No audited financial statements have been prepared since its date of
incorporation as it is incorporated in a jurisdiction where there is no

statutory audit requirement.

(b)  The audited statutory financial statements of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated/established in Hong Kong and in the PRC
were prepared in accordance with the relevant accounting principles
and financial regulations applicable to enterprises incorporated/
established in Hong Kong and in the PRC were audited by:

Name of Subsidiaries

MEQE BB

Financial year

MBEFEE

39. i B 2 B & 18 (@)

AEERBFETATENE QRS R
12A3MBAVMBFEFLEH -

(a)

(b)

M A SZ AT E RLE R I SR R
VAR R B B ISR

ARARIREE R B MRS PRI
& A R BRLORE M BIHMRIIRE
BRAREEE RP MK R e
EHEAEHRAINMERERE &
AT EBMER

Name of auditor

REE BB

3 Wells Watch Industries Limited
=HEEBRRAR

Cheer China Group Holdings
Limited
BEEETERERAT

Cheer Wells Trading Limited
BIESHERRAF

Creative Profit Investment Limited

EMEAEBRAF

3 Wells Catering Culture Limited
ZHHRRULERRAA

Shenzhen 3 Wells Watch Company
Limited
AN=HEEBRRF

Shenzhen Fujing Precision
Technology Company Limited
RYBHBER AR QA

Shenzhen Fuyang Precision
Technology Company Limited
RYBHIBERRBR QA

Hanvey Business Development

Limited
EEEFXERBRAFT

Annual Report 2020 55}

Year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
HZE2020F K 2019F 12 A31BIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019

HZE2020F 2019612 A31 BILFE

Year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
HZE2020F % 2019F 12 A31BILFE

Year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
HZE2020F %2019 12 A31 BIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
HZE2020F K 2019F 12 A31BILFE

Year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019

HE2020F M 201912 A31 B IEFE

Year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019

HZE2020F 201912 A31 B ILFE

Year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019

HE2020F K 2019F 12 A31HILFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12 A31 BILFE

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
B etmEEMAERAR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
BEEaEHERERAR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
BEetmEEMAERAR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
B AEBA AR AR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
BEestmEEMAERAR

Shenzhen Yida Certified Public
Accountants Co. Ltd.
AT RESGAMEBAEREELA

Shenzhen Yida Certified Public
Accountants Co. Ltd.
AT EEGAMEBAEREEAA

Shenzhen Yida Certified Public
Accountants Co. Ltd.
AT ERESHMNEEABEREEAA

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

BEgstmEBMERAR
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. XD T BB AR R &R
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

BZ12A831A
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz FEx FExT
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KRB AR EIRE - -
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables and prepayments Hoth e WG IE R TR K 585 1,722
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries I GEEYEPNGIE S 31,851 33,239
Bank balances and cash RITEHR RS 1,099 2,109
33,535 37,070
Current liabilities nEBEE
Other payables and accrued expenses Hofth B~ 008 S B AT B A 1,615 949
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries NIEES = PNGIE S 23,480 16,163
25,095 17,112
Net current asset RBEEFHE 8,440 19,958
Total assets less current liabilities EERERABERE 8,440 19,958
Net asset EEFHE 8,440 19,958
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital %N 29 10,000 10,000
Reserves [ 30 (1,560) 9,958
Total equity R 8,440 19,958
The consolidated financial statements were approved and %%%75@2021?3 A29 Elﬁt)’&&ﬁ%:
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2021 *'J??‘vf\é\ﬂﬁf%ﬁﬁ W NIAER
and signed on its behalf by: REE:
CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement AU Corona Ching Mei
HEE S
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEF HITESE

178 Hanvey Group Holdings Limited {E{Z & El#Z=ix R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o B I 4 5 WY 2

41. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF M. BRETIRGEESMBRR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and ZER2021F3 A29 BHLERE#ET)
authorised for issue by the Directors on 29 March 2021. BIRE MR -
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The following is a summary of the published results and assets and NTREAEEXBENEMBFERE 2ER
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years. The financial MEFHEERBERZ - HE20205F4F
information for the year 2020 is extracted from the consolidated ERFBER A RN FRRE M BHRE -
financial statements in this annual report.

Results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December

AEBEBZE12AMBLEEZEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 20194 20184 20174 2016
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
T#x TET TET TET TET

Revenue &2 139,335 198,050 182,478 174,817 151,892

(Loss)/profit before tax BB (BB)

BR (26,186) (13,873) (4,501) 6,016 5,902

Income tax expense FERiMAx (22) (675) (2,603) (2,056) (1,835)
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ F & (K]) %A (26,208) (14,548) (7,104) 3,960 4,067
Other comprehensive FRHEME2E

income/(expense) for WA/ (BX)

the year 3,053 463 (78) 490 (1,103)
Total comprehensive FER2@EFAX)

(expense)/income for WA 4%

the year (23,155) (14,085) (7,182) 4,450 2,964

Assets and liabilities of the Group
as at 31 December
FEER12A3MBZEERERE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 F 20194 20184 20174 2016 F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FHET FET FET

Non-current assets kRBEE 83,118 52,975 51,070 51,439 57,505
Current assets RBEE 127,197 146,643 150,903 132,601 123,540
Total assets EEQAE 210,315 199,618 201,973 184,040 181,045
Current liabilities REAE 118,869 134,898 123,306 129,654 153,578
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 51,624 1,743 1,605 22,486 17

Net assets EERE 39,822 62,977 77,062 31,900 27,450
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